FORWARD FUNDS

101 California Street, Suite 1600 San Francisco, California 94111 (800) 999-6809

		Tickers				
	Investor	Institutional				
Fund	Class	Class	Class A	Class C	Class M	
Forward Tactical Enhanced Fund	FTEEX	FTETX	FTEAX	FTEGX	None	

Statement of Additional Information

dated December 31, 2010

Forward Funds ("Forward Funds" or the "Trust") is an open-end management investment company commonly known as a mutual fund. The Trust offers multiple separate series (collectively, the "Funds"). Only the Forward Tactical Enhanced Fund (the "Fund") is discussed in this Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"). There is no assurance that the Fund will achieve its objective.

This SAI is not a prospectus and should be read in conjunction with the prospectuses for the Fund, dated December 31, 2010, which have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). A copy of the prospectuses of the Fund may be obtained free of charge by calling the Fund's transfer agent at (800) 999-6809.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1 age
ORGANIZATION OF FORWARD FUNDS	1
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	1
PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS DISCLOSURE	7
INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES	9
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES	17
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	17
ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES AND RISKS	19
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	40
ADDITIONAL PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION INFORMATION	40
DETERMINATION OF SHARE PRICE	44
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES AND PRIVILEGES	44
DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS	45
TAX CONSIDERATIONS	45
GENERAL INFORMATION	50
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	51

ORGANIZATION OF FORWARD FUNDS

The Trust is an open-end management investment company, commonly known as a mutual fund. The Trust was organized as a Pennsylvania common law trust on August 26, 1992 under the name HomeState Group and was reorganized effective April 7, 2005 as a Delaware statutory trust created on February 1, 2005.

The capitalization of the Trust consists of an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest with no par value per share.

This SAI pertains to Investor Class, Institutional Class, Class A, Class C, and Class M shares of the Fund.

The Board of Trustees may establish additional funds and classes of shares at any time in the future without shareholder approval. Holders of shares of the Fund have one vote for each share held, and a proportionate fraction of a vote for each fractional share. All shares issued and outstanding are fully paid and are non-assessable, transferable and redeemable at the option of the shareholder. Shares have no pre-emptive rights.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

Board of Trustees

The Trust's Board of Trustees oversees the management and business of the Fund. The Trustees are elected by shareholders of the Trust, or, in certain circumstances, may be appointed by the other Trustees. There are currently five Trustees, four of whom are not "interested persons" of the Trust as that term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act") (the "Independent Trustees"). The Trustees and Officers of the Trust, along with their affiliations over the last five years, are set forth below.

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES:

Name, Address, and Age*	Position(s) Held with the Trust	Term of Office and Length of Time Served**	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years	Number of Funds in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee***
Haig G. Mardikian Age: 63	Chairman	Since 1998+	Owner of Haig G. Mardikian Enterprises, a real estate investment business (1971 to present); General Partner of M&B Development, a real estate investment business (1983 to present); General Partner of George M. Mardikian Enterprises, a real estate investment business (1983 to 2002); President and Director of Adiuvana-Invest, Inc., a real estate investment business (1989 to present); President of the William Saroyan Foundation (1992 to present); Managing Director of the United Broadcasting Company, radio broadcasting (1983 to 2001); Trustee of the International House of UC Berkeley (term: 2001 to 2007); Director of the Downtown Association of San Francisco (1982 to 2006); Director of the Market Street Association (1982 to 2006); Trustee of Trinity College (1998 to 2007); Trustee of the Herbert Hoover Presidential Library (1997 to present); Trustee of the Herbert Hoover Foundation (2002 to present); Trustee of the Advisor California Civil Liberties Public Education Fund (1997 to 2006) Director of The Walnut Management Co., a privately held family investment company (2008 to present); President of the Foundation of City College (2006 to present); Director of Near East Foundation (2007 to present); Member of the Board of Overseers of the Hoover Institution at Stanford University (2006 to present).		Chairman and Director of SIFE Trust Fund (1978 – 2002)

Name, Address, and Age [*] Donald O'Connor Age: 74	Position(s) Held with the Trust Trustee	Term of Office and Length of Time Served** Since 2000+	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years Financial Consultant (1997 to present); Retired Vice President of Operations, Investment Company Institute ("ICI"), a mutual fund trade association (1969 to 1993); Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, ICI Mutual Insurance Company, an insurance company (1987 to 1997); Chief, Branch	Number of Funds in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee*** Trustee of the Advisors Series Trust (15) (1997 to present).
DeWitt F. Bowman Age: 79	Trustee, Audit Committee Chairman	Since 2006 (Director of Forward Funds, Inc. since 2000)+	of Market Surveillance, Securities and Exchange Commission (1964 to 1969). Principal, Pension Investment Consulting, a consulting company (1994 to present); Interim Treasurer and Vice President for Investments, University of California (2000 to 2001); Treasurer of Pacific Pension Institute, a non-profit education organization (1994 to 2002); Treasurer of Edgewood Center for Children and Families, a non-profit care center (1994 to 2004); Director, Episcopal Diocese of California, a non- profit religious organization (1964 to	35	Trustee, Brandes Mutual Funds (1995 to present); Director, RREEF America III REIT (2002 to present); Director, RREEF America I REIT (2004 to 2007); Trustee, Sycuan Funds (2003 to 2009); Trustee, Wilshire Mutual Funds (1996 to 2007); Trustee, PCG Private Equity Fund (1994 to present).
Cecilia H. Herbert Age: 61	Trustee, Nominating Committee Chairperson		present); Trustee of the Pacific Gas and Electric Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Fund, a nuclear decommissioning trust (1994 to present); Chief Investment Officer, California Public Employees Retirement System (1989 to 1994). President of the Board of Catholic Charities CYO (since 2007); Trustee, The Thacher School (since 2002); Chair, The Thacher School Investment Committee (since 2006); Chair, Thacher School Finance Committee (2006 - 2008); Managing Director and head of San Francisco office, J.P. Morgan/ Morgan Guaranty Trust Company, a commercial and investment banking institution (1973 to 1976 and 1978 to 1991); Assistant Vice President, Signet Banking Corporation, a multi-bank	35	Director, iShares Inc. (since 2005); Trustee, iShares Trust (since 2005); Trustee, Pacific Select Funds (2004 - 2005); Trustee, The Montgomery Funds (1992 to 2003).

INTERESTED TRUSTEE:

Name, Address, and Age*	Position(s) Held with the Trust	Term of Office and Length of Time Served**	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years	Number of Funds in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee***
J. Alan Reid, Jr. **** Age: 48	President, Trustee	Since 2001*	Chief Executive Officer of Forward Management, LLC, an investment advisor (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer and Director, ReFlow Management Co., LLC, an investment services company (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer and Director, ReFlow Fund, LLC, an investment services company (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer of Sutton Place Management, an investment services company (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer of Sutton Place Associates (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer of FISCOP, LLC (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer of FISCOP, LLC (2001 to present); Chief Executive Officer of Broderick Management, LLC, an investment services company (2001 to present); Member of ICI Board of Governors (2008 to present); Director of Legato Capital Management, an investment services company (2004 to 2009); Senior Vice President, Director of Business Delivery, Morgan Stanley Online, a financial services company (1999 to 2001); Executive Vice President and Treasurer, Webster Investment Management Co., LLC (1998 to 1999); Vice President, Regional Director, Investment Consulting Services, Morgan Stanley, Dean Witter, Discover & Co., a financial services company (1992 to 1998); Vice President of the Board of Trustees of Centerpoint, a public health and welfare organization (1997 to present); Advisory Board Member, Finaplex, a software company (2002 to present); Advisory Board of SunGard Expert Solutions (1998 to present).		Director, FOLIOfn, Inc. (2002 to present).

Each Trustee may be contacted by writing to the Trustee, c/o Forward Management, LLC, 101 California Street, Suite 1600, San Francisco, CA 94111.

^{**} Each Trustee will hold office for an indefinite term until the earliest of (i) the next meeting of shareholders, if any, called for the purpose of considering the election or re-election of such Trustee and until the election and qualification of his successor, if any, elected at such meeting; or (ii) the date a Trustee resigns or retires, or a Trustee is removed by the Board of Trustees or shareholders, in accordance with the Trust's Declaration of Trust.

^{***} This column includes only directorships of companies required to report to the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (i.e., public companies) or other investment companies registered under the 1940 Act.

^{***} Mr. Reid is considered an interested Trustee because he acts as Chief Executive Officer of Forward Management, LLC, the Funds' investment advisor, and holds other positions with an affiliate of the Trust.

⁺ Each Trustee, other than Mr. Bowman and Ms. Herbert, has served as Trustee to the Trust since May 1, 2005. However, beginning on the date indicated in the chart, each Trustee served as a director for the nine series of Forward Funds, Inc., which were reorganized as series of the Trust effective July 1, 2005. Mr. Bowman was appointed as Trustee effective January 1, 2006, and served as a director for the nine series of Forward Funds, Inc. since 2000. Ms. Herbert was appointed as a Trustee effective November 9, 2009.

OFFICERS:

Name, Address, and Age* Barbara H. Tolle 101 California Street Suite 1600 San Francisco, CA	Position(s) Held with the Trust Treasurer	Term of Office and Length of Time Served Since 2006	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years Director of Fund Accounting and Operations, Forward Management (since 2006); Vice President and Director, Fund Accounting and Administration, PFPC Inc. (1999-2006).
94111 Age: 61 Mary Curran 101 California Street Suite 1600 San Francisco, CA 94111 Age: 63	Secretary	Since 2004**	Chief Legal Officer, Forward Management (since 2002); Chief Legal Officer, ReFlow Management Co., LLC (since 2002); General Counsel, Morgan Stanley Online (1997-2002).
Judith M. Rosenberg 101 California Street Suite 1600 San Francisco, CA 94111 Age: 62	Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Legal Officer	Since 2006	Chief Compliance Officer, Forward Management (since 2005); First Vice President and Senior Attorney, Morgan Stanley (1984-1997; 2002-2005); Director of Compliance, Morgan Stanley Online (1997-2002).
Robert S. Naka 101 California Street Suite 1600 San Francisco, CA 94111 Age: 47	Vice President Funds	Since 2009	Senior Vice President Operations, Forward Management (since 2009); Principal & Chief Operating Officer, Anew Capital Management LLC (2007-2009); Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer, ING Funds & Predecessors (1989-2007).
Julie Allecta*** 101 California Street Suite 1600 San Francisco, CA 94111 Age: 63		Since 2010	Partner, Paul Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP (1997 to 2009); Treasurer and Director, WildCare Bay Area (since 2008); Director, Audubon Canyon Ranch (since 2009).

^{*} Each officer shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees until the next annual meeting of the Trust or until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified, or until he or she dies, resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.

Leadership Structure of the Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the oversight of the Trust. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees is an Independent Trustee. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees' role is to preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees, and to act as a liaison with service providers, officers, attorneys, and other Trustees generally between meetings. The Chairman may also perform such other functions as may be delegated by the Board of Trustees from time to time. The Independent Trustees meet regularly outside the presence of Forward Management, in executive session or with other service providers to the Fund. The Board of Trustees has regular meetings four times a year and may hold special meetings if required before its next regular meeting. The Board of Trustees has established two standing committees in connection with its governance of the Fund: Audit and Nominating Committees. Each committee meets regularly to conduct the oversight functions delegated to that committee by the Board of Trustees and reports its findings to the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees and each standing committee conduct annual assessments of their oversight function, structure, and effectiveness. The Board of Trustees has determined through its self-evaluation process that the Trust's leadership structure is appropriate because the structure permits the Board of Trustees to exercise independent judgment over management and to allocate areas of responsibility among committees and the full Board of Trustees to effectively oversee the Trust.

The Audit Committee consists of four members: Messrs. Bowman, Mardikian, O'Connor and Ms. Herbert. The functions performed by the Audit Committee include, among other things, considering the matters pertaining to the Trust's financial records and internal accounting controls and acting as the principal liaison between the Board of Trustees and the Trust's independent registered public accounting firm. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, the Audit Committee convened four times.

^{**} Ms. Curran has served as an officer of the Trust since May 1, 2005. However, beginning on the date indicated in the chart, Ms. Curran served as an officer for the nine series of Forward Funds, Inc., which were reorganized as series of the Trust effective July 1, 2005.

^{***} Ms. Allecta is a member of the Advisory Board of the Trust.

The Nominating Committee consists of four members: Messrs. Bowman, Mardikian, O'Connor and Ms. Herbert. The function performed by the Nominating Committee is to select and nominate candidates to serve as non-interested Trustees (including considering written nominations from shareholders delivered to the Trust at its address on the cover of this SAI), and approve officers and committee members. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, the Nominating Committee convened three times.

Day-to-day management of the Fund, including the monitoring of various risks to which the Fund is subject, is the responsibility of Forward Management or the Fund's sub-advisor or other service providers (depending on the nature of the risk), subject to the supervision of Forward Management. The Fund is subject to a number of risks, including investment, compliance, operational, and valuation risks, among others. While Forward Management and the Fund's sub-advisor or other service providers perform a number of risk management functions, it is not possible to eliminate all of the risks applicable to the Fund. Risk oversight forms part of the Board of Trustees' general oversight of the Fund and is addressed as part of various Board of Trustees and committee activities. The Board of Trustees, directly or through the Audit Committee, also reviews reports from, among others, management, the independent registered accounting firm for the Fund, the Fund's sub-advisor, and internal auditors for Forward Management or its affiliates, as appropriate, regarding risks faced by the Fund and management's or each service provider's risk functions. The committee system facilitates the timely and efficient consideration of matters by the Trustees, and facilitates effective oversight of compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of the Fund's activities and associated risks. The Board of Trustees has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer, who oversees the implementation and testing of the Fund's compliance program, assists the Board of Trustees in monitoring compliance risks, and reports to the Board of Trustees regarding compliance matters for the Fund and its service providers. The Independent Trustees have engaged independent legal counsel to assist them in performing their oversight responsibilities.

Trustee Qualifications and Experience

The Nominating Committee does not use specific criteria in analyzing candidates to serve on the Board of Trustees, and there are no specific required qualifications for Board membership set out in the Trust's organizational documents. Rather, the Board of Trustees believes that the different points of view, professional experiences, education, and individual qualities of each Trustee represent a diversity of experiences and a variety of complementary skills. The Trustees believe that their combined experiences and qualifications allow the Board of Trustees to oversee the business of the Fund in a manner consistent with the best interest of the Fund's shareholders. When considering potential nominees to fill vacancies on the Board of Trustees, and as part of its self-evaluation, the Board of Trustees reviews the mix of skills and other relevant experiences of the Trustees.

Haig G. Mardikian – Mr. Mardikian, currently Chairman of the Board of Trustees, has served as a Trustee since 1998 and has served as a member of the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee during his entire tenure as a Trustee. In addition to Mr. Mardikian's responsibilities as a Trustee, he has served as a trustee of numerous educational, philanthropic, and professional organizations. Mr. Mardikian also has professional experience in the fields of real estate investment and broadcasting. Additional information regarding Mr. Mardikian's principal occupations and other directorships held is presented in the chart above. Mr. Mardikian has a BA from Trinity College and a MBA from Harvard Business School.

Donald O'Connor – Mr. O'Connor has served as a Trustee since 2000 and has served as a member of the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee during his entire tenure as a Trustee. In addition to Mr. O'Connor's responsibilities as a Trustee, he has served as a trustee to other mutual fund complexes. Mr. O'Connor also has professional experience in the fields of investment management and insurance. Additional information regarding Mr. O'Connor's principal occupations and other directorships held is presented in the chart above. Mr. O'Connor has a BA in business administration, economics and finance from George Washington University and a MBA in finance, business administration and data processing from George Washington University.

DeWitt F. Bowman – Mr. Bowman, currently Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees, has served as a Trustee since 2000 and has served as a member of the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee during his entire tenure as a Trustee. In addition to Mr. Bowman's responsibilities as a Trustee, he has served as a trustee to non-governmental organizations, other mutual fund complexes, and private investment funds. Mr. Bowman also has professional experience in the field of investment management. Additional information regarding Mr. Bowman's principal occupations and other directorships held is presented in the chart above. Mr. Bowman has a BS in Geology from the University of Wisconsin-Madison.

Cecilia H. Herbert – Ms. Herbert, currently Chairperson of the Nominating Committee of the Board of Trustees, has served as a Trustee since 2009 and has served as a member of the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee during her entire tenure as a Trustee. In addition to Ms. Herbert's responsibilities as a Trustee, Ms. Herbert has served as a trustee of educational and philanthropic organizations and other mutual fund complexes. Ms. Herbert also has professional experience in the fields of banking and finance. Additional information regarding Ms. Herbert's principal occupations and other directorships held is presented in the chart above. Ms. Herbert has a BA in economics and communications from Stanford University and a MBA in finance from Harvard Business School.

J. Alan Reid, Jr. – Mr. Reid has served as a Trustee since 2001. In addition to Mr. Reid's responsibilities as a Trustee, Mr. Reid also serves as President of the Trust and Chief Executive Officer of Forward Management. Additional information regarding Mr. Reid's principal occupations and other directorships held is presented in the chart above. Mr. Reid has a BS in business administration from Menlo College.

As noted in the chart above, each Trustee, other than Mr. Bowman and Ms. Herbert, has served as a Trustee to the Trust since May 1, 2005. However, beginning on the year indicated above, each Trustee served as a director for the nine series of Forward Funds, Inc., which were reorganized as series of the Trust effective July 1, 2005. Mr. Bowman was appointed as a Trustee effective January 1, 2006, and served as a director for the nine series of Forward Funds, Inc. since 2000. Ms. Herbert was appointed as a Trustee effective November 9, 2009.

The following table sets forth information regarding the ownership of the Fund by each of the Trustees, and information regarding the aggregate ownership by each Trustee of the Forward Funds.

Information As of December 31, 2009

INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES

	Aggregate Dollar Range of
	Equity Securities in All
Dollar Range	Registered Investment
of Equity	Companies Overseen by
Securities in	Trustee in Family of
the Fund*	Investment Companies*
A	D
A	E
A	D
A	A
	of Equity Securities in the Fund* A A

INTERESTED TRUSTEE:

		Aggregate Dollar Range of
		Equity Securities in All
	Dollar Range	Registered Investment
	of Equity	Companies Overseen by
	Securities in	Trustee in Family of
Name of Trustee	the Fund*	Investment Companies*
J. Alan Reid, Jr.	A	E

Key to Dollar Ranges

As of December 31, 2009, no Trustee who is not an interested person of the Trust owned any securities of the Fund's investment advisor, Forward Management, LLC ("Forward Management" or the "Investment Advisor"), the Fund's sub-advisor, ALPS Distributors, Inc. (the "Distributor" or "ADI") or their affiliates.

Trustee Compensation

The Trust pays each independent Trustee a retainer fee in the amount of \$25,000 per year, \$10,000 each for attendance in person at a regular meeting (\$5,000 for attendance via telephone at a regular meeting). The Trust also pays each independent Trustee \$3,000 for attendance in person at each special meeting or committee meeting that is not held in conjunction with a regular meeting, and \$2,250 for attendance at a special telephonic meeting, and \$1,000 per day for participation in Trust-related meetings not held in conjunction with a meeting. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees and the Chairman of the Audit Committee each receive a special retainer fee in the amount of \$10,000 per year. The interested Trustee does not receive any compensation from the Trust. With the exception of the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer as discussed below, officers of the Trust and Trustees who are affiliated persons of either the Trust, Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisors do not receive any compensation from the Trust or any other funds managed by the Fund's Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisors. As of December 31, 2009, the Officers and Trustees owned less than 1% of the outstanding shares of the Fund. As discussed below in "Investment Advisory and Other Services – Other Service Providers," the Trust has agreed to compensate the Investment Advisor for, among other expenses, providing an officer or employee of the Investment Advisor for the Trust, and may compensate the Investment Advisor for the time of other officers or employees of the Investment Advisor who serve in other compliance capacities for the Trust.

A None

B \$1-\$10,000

C \$10,001 - \$50,000

D \$50,001 - \$100,000

E Over \$100,000

Retirement Total Benefits Estimated Compensati	
Renefits Estimated Compensati	
Delicitis Estimated Compensati	on
Aggregate Accrued As Annual From Trus	t
Compensation Part of Funds' Benefits Upon and Fund	
Name and Position From Trust Expenses Retirement Complex ⁽)
J. Alan Reid, Jr. Trustee* None None None None	
Haig G. Mardikian, Trustee \$78,250 \$0 \$0 \$78,250	
Donald O'Connor, Trustee \$67,250 \$0 \$0 \$67,250	
DeWitt F. Bowman, Trustee \$78,250 \$0 \$0 \$78,250	
Cecilia H. Herbert, Trustee(2) \$52,000 \$0 \$52,000	

^{*} Interested

Trustee and Officer Indemnification

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Trust will indemnify the Trustees and may indemnify its officers against liabilities and expenses incurred in connection with litigation in which they may be involved because of their offices with the Trust, except if it is determined in the manner specified in the Trust that they have acted in bad faith, with reckless disregard of their duties, willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trust, at its expense, may provide liability insurance for the benefit of its Trustees and its officers.

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS DISCLOSURE

Forward Funds has adopted policies and procedures related to the selective disclosure of portfolio holdings ("Disclosure Policies"). The Disclosure Policies provide that it is the policy of Forward Funds and their service providers to protect the confidentiality of their holdings and prevent the selective disclosure of non-public information about the Fund's portfolio holdings. The Disclosure Policies are designed to address conflicts of interest between the Fund's shareholders and its Investment Advisor, Sub-Advisor, principal underwriter or any affiliated person of such entities by limiting and delineating the circumstances under which non-public information about the Fund's portfolio holdings may be disseminated. No information concerning the portfolio holdings of the Fund may be disclosed to any unaffiliated third party except in limited circumstances, as described below.

Violations of the Disclosure Policies must be reported to the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer. If the Chief Compliance Officer, in the exercise of his or her duties, deems that such violation constitutes a "Material Compliance Matter" within the meaning of Rule 38a-1 under the 1940 Act, he/she shall report it to the Trust's Board of Trustees, as required by Rule 38a-1.

Disclosures Required by Law

Nothing contained in the Disclosure Policies is intended to prevent the disclosure of portfolio holdings information as may be required by applicable laws and regulations. For example, the Fund or any of their affiliates or service providers may file any report required by applicable law, such as periodic portfolio disclosure in filings with the SEC, respond to requests from regulators, and comply with valid subpoenas.

Public Disclosures on Web Site

Forward Funds discloses all portfolio holdings of the Fund as of the end of each month on its web site at www.forwardfunds.com. Portfolio holdings as of month-end are posted on the 21st day of the next succeeding month (or, if the 21st day is not a Business Day, then on the next Business Day). The portfolio holdings for each month will remain available on the web site for a minimum of six months following the date posted. In addition, the Forward Funds may, at the discretion of the Investment Advisor, publicly disclose portfolio holdings information at any time with respect to securities held by the Fund that are in default, distressed, or experiencing a negative credit event. Any such disclosure will be broadly disseminated via the Fund's website or other means.

Confidential Dissemination of Portfolio Holdings

The Fund may disclose portfolio holdings, under Conditions of Confidentiality, as defined herein, before their public disclosure is required or authorized by policy as above, to service providers, to data aggregators, and to mutual fund evaluation and due diligence

⁽¹⁾ The Fund Complex consists of the Trust, which currently consists of thirty-five series.

⁽²⁾ Cecilia H. Herbert was appointed as a Trustee on November 9, 2009. Prior to that, Ms. Herbert served as an Advisory Board Member since March 2009. As of December 31, 2009, Ms. Herbert received \$52,000 from the Trust as a member of the Advisory Board.

departments of broker-dealers and wire houses that regularly analyze the portfolio holdings of mutual funds in order to monitor and report on various attributes including style, capitalization, maturity, yield, beta, etc. These services and departments then distribute the results of their analysis to the public, paid subscribers and/or in-house brokers. Holdings authorized to be disclosed may be disclosed by officers of the Fund, the Investment Advisor, or service providers in possession of such information. Such holdings are released under conditions of confidentiality. "Conditions of Confidentiality" means that:

- (a) the recipient may not distribute the portfolio holdings or results of the analysis to third parties, other departments or persons who are likely to use the information for purposes of purchasing or selling the Fund before the portfolio holdings or results of the analysis become public information; and
- (b) the recipient must sign a written Confidentiality Agreement in form and substance acceptable to the Fund's Chief Compliance Officer which, among other things, provides that the recipient of the portfolio holdings information agrees to limit access to the information to those persons who are subject to confidentiality obligations, and includes an obligation not to trade on non-public information.

The Trust's Board of Trustees or Chief Compliance Officer may, on a case-by-case basis, impose additional restrictions on the dissemination of portfolio information beyond those imposed by the Disclosure Policies, or may approve exceptions or revisions to the Disclosure Policies. For example, the Fund may determine to not provide purchase and sale information with respect to a Fund that invests in smaller capitalization companies or less liquid securities. The Disclosure Policies may not be waived, or exceptions made, without the consent of the Trust's Board of Trustees or Chief Compliance Officer.

The Board of Trustees will review at least annually a list of the entities that have received such information, the frequency of such disclosures and the business purpose therefore. Any material changes to the policies and procedures for the disclosure of portfolio holdings will be reported to the Board on at least an annual basis.

The identity of the entities with which Forward Funds has ongoing arrangements to provide portfolio holdings information under Conditions of Confidentiality, the frequency with which they receive such information and the length of the lag between the date of the information and the date it is disclosed is provided below:

- 1. FactSet Research Systems Inc.- Daily for the Fund with no delay.
- 2. Electra Information Systems Inc. Daily for the Fund with no delay.
- 3. Glass, Lewis & Co. Daily (or less frequently) for the Fund with no delay.

The policy also permits the daily or less frequent disclosure of any and all portfolio information to the Fund's service providers and others who generally need access to such information in the performance of their contractual duties and responsibilities, such as the Fund's custodian (Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.), Investment Advisor, administrator/fund accountants (ALPS Fund Services, Inc.), independent registered public accounting firm (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP), legal counsel (Dechert LLP), officers, and directors and each of their respective affiliates and advisors, who are subject to duties of confidentiality imposed by law and/or contract, including a duty not to trade on non-public information.

Analytical Information

The Fund or its duly authorized service providers may distribute the following information concerning the Fund's portfolio before disclosure of all portfolio holdings is made as discussed above, provided that the information has been publicly disclosed (via the Fund's website or otherwise):

- Top Twenty-five Holdings. Top twenty-five holdings and the total percentage of the Fund such aggregate holdings represent.
- Sector Holdings. Sector information and the total percentage of the Fund held in each sector.
- Other Portfolio Characteristic Data. Any other analytical data that does not identify any specific portfolio holding.

Press Interviews, Broker Discussions, etc.

Portfolio managers and other senior officers or spokespersons of the Fund may disclose or confirm the ownership of any individual portfolio holding position to reporters, brokers, shareholders, consultants or other interested persons only if such information has been previously publicly disclosed in accordance with these Disclosure Policies. For example, a portfolio manager discussing a particular Fund may indicate that he or she likes and/or owns for the Fund a security only if the Fund's ownership of such security has previously been publicly disclosed (and the statement is otherwise accurate and not misleading).

Trading Desk Reports

The trading desks of the Fund's Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor may periodically distribute lists of applicable investments held by their clients (including the Fund) for the purpose of facilitating efficient trading of such investments and receipt of relevant research.

Research Coverage

The Fund's Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor may periodically distribute a list of the issuers and securities that are covered by their research department as of a particular date. The list of issuers and securities may represent securities currently held by the Fund and securities which may be purchased for the Fund. In no case will a list specifically identify an issuer's securities as either currently held or anticipated to be held by the Fund or identify Fund position sizes.

Conflicts of Interest

Whenever portfolio holdings disclosure made pursuant to the Disclosure Policies involves a conflict of interest between the Fund's shareholders and the Fund's Investment Advisor, Sub-Advisor, Distributor or any affiliated person of the Fund, the disclosure may not be made unless a majority of the Independent Trustees or a majority of a Board committee consisting solely of Independent Trustees approves such disclosure after considering the best interests of shareholders and potential conflicts in making such disclosures. The Fund and the Fund's Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor will not enter into any arrangement providing for the disclosure of non-public portfolio holding information for the receipt of compensation or benefit of any kind.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES

Investment Advisor

Forward Management serves as the Investment Advisor to the Fund. Forward Management has the authority to manage the Fund in accordance with the investment objective, policies and restrictions of the Fund and subject to general supervision of the Trust's Board of Trustees. Forward Management also has the authority to engage the services of different sub-advisors with the approval of the Trustees of the Fund and the Fund's shareholders. Forward Management also provides the Fund with ongoing management supervision and policy direction.

Forward Management is a registered investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 ("Advisers Act"). Forward Management supervises the activities of the Sub-Advisor. Forward Management is located at 101 California Street, Suite 1600, San Francisco, California 94111. Forward Management's ownership interests are held approximately as follows: Gordon P. Getty, Chairman of the Board (35%); ReFlow Forward Holding Company, an entity controlled by Mr. Getty (35%); management and employees (26%); and unaffiliated outsider investors (4%). As of December 31, 2009, Forward Management had approximately \$5.4 billion of assets under management.

Forward Management has delegated to the Sub-Advisor the authority to manage the Fund. Forward Management has managed the Fund since inception. The thirty-five portfolios of the Trust are Forward Management's principal investment advisory clients. Daily investment decisions are made by the Sub-Advisor for the Fund. Certain information regarding Forward Management is described above, and certain information regarding the Sub-Advisor is described below.

Hiring Sub-Advisors without Shareholder Approval

Forward Management and Forward Funds have received an exemptive order from the SEC that permits Forward Management, subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees of the Trust, to hire and terminate non-affiliated sub-advisors or to materially amend existing sub-advisory agreements with non-affiliated sub-advisors for the Fund without shareholder approval. Pursuant to such exemptive relief, shareholders of the affected Fund will be notified of the hiring of a sub-advisor or sub-advisor changes within 90 days after the effective date of such change.

Sub-Advisor

Broadmark Asset Management, LLC

Forward Management has engaged the services of Broadmark Asset Management, LLC ("Broadmark") to act as sub-advisor to the Fund. Broadmark is a Delaware limited liability company that is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC pursuant to the Advisers Act. Broadmark is located at 12 East 52nd Street, 3nd Floor, New York, New York 10022. As of September 30, 2010, Broadmark had assets under management of approximately \$1.7 billion.

As of December 31, 2009, Forward Management owned 21.42% of the outstanding voting securities of Broadmark, contributed over 40% of the capital of Broadmark, was entitled to a substantial preferred share of certain advisory revenues, had the right to a substantial liquidation interest, had the right to approve certain business activities, and had the right to appoint 1/3 of the members of Broadmark's Board of Managers. Based on the advice of counsel and in light of the relevant facts and circumstances, it is Forward Management's position that it is a control person of Broadmark for purposes of the 1940 Act.

The portfolio manager of the Forward Tactical Enhanced Fund is Christopher J. Guptill. Mr. Guptill is Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of Broadmark and has been with the company since its inception in 1999. Mr. Guptill, a founding member of Broadmark, is based in the California office and is responsible for the development of Broadmark's investment management programs and products. He is also responsible for the implementation of all portfolio management and execution. Mr. Guptill began his career in 1979 at Paine Webber, Jackson and Curtis. In the mid-1980s he developed a specialty for identifying emerging equity managers. In 1994, Mr. Guptill joined McKinley Capital Management, Inc. and was initially responsible for portfolio management as senior portfolio manager. He later became the firm's chief equity strategist. Additionally, Mr. Guptill developed, launched and co-managed the firm's highly successful alternative investment portfolios. Mr. Guptill is a 1979 graduate of California State University, Chico with a BA in economics.

Investment Management and Sub-Advisory Agreements

The Fund pays an investment advisory fee, which is computed daily and paid monthly, at the annual rate of 2.15% based on the average daily net assets of the Fund.

From time to time, the Investment Advisor may waive receipt of its fees and/or voluntarily assume certain Fund expenses, which would have the effect of reducing the Fund's expense ratio and increasing returns to shareholders at the time such amounts are waived or assumed, as the case may be. Each class of shares of the Fund pays its respective pro rata portion of the advisory fees payable by the Fund.

Under the terms of the investment advisory contract between the Trust and the Investment Advisor (the "Investment Management Agreement"), the Investment Advisor provides a program of continuous investment management for the Fund with regard to the Fund's investment of its assets in accordance with the Fund's investment objectives, policies and limitations. In providing investment management services to the Fund, the Investment Advisor will: (a) make investment decisions for the Fund, including, but not limited to, the selection and management of an investment sub-advisor for the Fund, in which case any of the duties of the Investment Advisor under the Investment Management Agreement may be delegated to such investment sub-advisor subject to approval by the Board of Trustees; (b) if an investment sub-advisor is appointed with respect to the Fund, monitor and evaluate the performance of the investment sub-advisor under their respective sub-advisory agreement in light of the investment objectives and policies of the respective Fund, and render to the Trustees such periodic and special reports related to such performance monitoring as the Trustees may reasonably request, and analyze and recommend changes in the investment sub-advisor as the Investment Advisor may deem appropriate; (c) place orders to purchase and sell investments in the Fund; (d) furnish to the Fund the services of its employees and agents in the management and conduct of the corporate business and affairs of the Fund; (e) if requested, and subject to certain reimbursement provisions of the Investment Management Agreement with respect to the Chief Compliance Officer of the Trust, provide the services of its officers as officers or administrative executives of the Fund of the Trust who are "interested persons" of the Trust or its affiliates, as that term is defined in the 1940 Act, subject in each case to their individual consent to serve and to applicable legal limitations; and (f) provide office space, secretarial and clerical services and wire and telephone services (not including toll charges, which will be reimbursed by the Fund), and monitor and review Fund contracted services and expenditures pursuant to the distribution and service plans of the Fund. Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Advisor is also authorized to enter into brokerage transactions, including with brokers affiliated with the Investment Advisor, with respect to the Fund's portfolio securities, always subject to best execution. The Investment Management Agreement authorizes the Fund to use soft dollars to obtain research reports and services and to use directed brokerage on behalf of the Fund, however the Investment Advisor reviews such transactions on a quarterly basis. The Investment Advisor may also aggregate sales and purchase orders of securities held in the Fund with similar orders being made simultaneously for other accounts managed by the Investment Advisor or with accounts of the Investment Advisor's affiliates, if in the Investment Advisor's reasonable judgment such aggregation shall result in an overall economic benefit to the respective Fund.

The Investment Advisor compensates the Sub-Advisor out of the Investment Advisor's revenues. All fees paid to the Investment Advisor by the Fund are computed and accrued daily and paid monthly based on the net asset value of shares of the Fund.

For the services provided pursuant to the Sub-Advisory Agreement with Forward Management, the Sub-Advisor receives a monthly fee from Forward Management at the annual rate of 1.40% based on the average daily net assets of the Fund.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board of Trustees' approval of the Investment Management Agreement and investment sub-advisory contract for the Fund will be available in Forward Funds' semi-annual reports for the period ending June 30, 2011.

As described in the prospectuses, the Investment Advisor has agreed to limit the total expenses of the Fund through the dates indicated to the annual rates stated below. Pursuant to this agreement, the Fund will reimburse the Investment Advisor for any fee waivers or expense reimbursements made by the Investment Advisor, provided that any such reimbursements made by the Fund to the Investment Advisor will not cause the Fund's expense limitation to exceed the expense limitation in existence at the time the expenses were

incurred or at the time of the reimbursement, whichever is lower, and the reimbursement is made within three years after the expenses were incurred. There is no assurance that these expense limitations will be continued beyond the dates indicated.

Fund	Class	End Date	Expense Limit
Forward Tactical Enhanced Fund	Investor Class	April 30, 2012	2.84%
	Institutional Class	April 30, 2012	2.49%
	Class A	April 30, 2012	2.99%
	Class C	April 30, 2012	3.44%
	Class M	April 30, 2012	2.49%

The Sub-Advisor has contractually agreed to waive its fees in the same proportion as the Investment Advisor in amounts necessary to limit the Fund's operating expenses to the annual rate stated in the Prospectus.

Portfolio Manager

Broadmark Capital Management, LLC

Christopher J. Guptill is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund. The table below includes details about the type, number, and assets under management for the various types of accounts, and total assets in the accounts with respect to which the advisory fee is based on the performance of the accounts that he managed as of September 30, 2010.

			Number of	Total Assets
			Accounts Managed	Managed for which
	Number of	Total Assets	for which	Advisory Fee is
	Accounts	Managed	Advisory Fee is	Performance-Based
Type of Account	Managed	(in Millions)	Performance-Based	(in Millions)
Registered Investment Companies	3	\$813.7	0	\$0.0
Other pooled investment vehicles	2	\$17.8	2	\$17.8
Other accounts	11	\$899.8	4	\$43.9

Potential conflicts of interest may arise because Broadmark engages in portfolio management activities for other clients. Broadmark has adopted a portfolio security aggregation and allocation policy, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance that buy and sell opportunities are allocated fairly among clients. When practicable, buy and sell trades are aggregated and subsequently allocated based on the size of the target position of that security for each client account and the portion of that target position represented by the share quantity included in the aggregated trade. The prices of securities allocated are at the average share price for all transactions in that security for a given aggregated trade order, with all transaction costs shared on a pro rata basis.

Mr. Guptill receives a fixed annual salary and discretionary bonus compensation based upon the profitability of Broadmark in which he has significant ownership.

The following table sets forth information regarding the ownership of the Fund by the portfolio manager responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund's portfolio.

Information as of December 31, 2010

Name of Portfolio Manager	Fund	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Fund*
Christopher J. Guptill	Forward Tactical Enhanced Fund	A

- * Key to Dollar Ranges
- A None
- B \$1 \$10,000
- C \$10,001 \$50,000
- D \$50,001 \$100,000
- E \$100,001 \$500,000
- F \$500,001 \$1,000,000
- G Over \$1,000,000

Distributor

The Fund offers its shares to the public on a continuous basis. Shares of the Fund are distributed pursuant to a Distribution Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2005 and amended on April 12, 2010 (the "Distribution Agreement"), between the Trust and the Distributor, ALPS Distributors, Inc., 1290 Broadway, Suite 1100, Denver, CO 80203. The Distribution Agreement requires the Distributor to solicit orders for the sale of shares and to undertake such advertising and promotion as the Distributor believes reasonable in connection with such solicitation. The Trust and the Distributor have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities. The Trust pays no fee to the Distributor under the Distribution Agreement. The Distribution Agreement will remain in effect from year to year only if its continuance is approved annually by a majority of the Board of Trustees who are not parties to such agreement or "interested persons" of any such party and must be approved either by votes of a majority of the Trustees or a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund. The Distribution Agreement may be terminated by either party on at least 60 days' written notice and will terminate automatically in the event of its assignment (as defined in the 1940 Act).

Codes of Ethics

The Trust, the Investment Advisor, the Sub-Advisor, and the Distributor have adopted Codes of Ethics governing personal trading activities of all of their trustees, directors and officers and persons who, in connection with their regular functions, play a role in the recommendation of any purchase or sale of a security by the Fund or obtain information pertaining to such purchase or sale. The Codes of Ethics permit personnel subject to the Codes of Ethics to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund.

The Investment Advisor's and Sub-Advisor's Codes of Ethics are designed to address and avoid potential conflicts of interest relating to personal trading and related activities. The Codes of Ethics instruct the Investment Advisor to always place the interests of shareholders first, ensure that all personal securities transactions are conducted consistent with the Code of Ethics and in such a manner to avoid any actual or potential conflicts of interest or abuse, and prohibits investment company personnel from taking inappropriate advantage of their positions.

The Investment Advisor's and Sub-Advisor's Codes of Ethics prohibits personal trading in certain securities by access persons unless they have received written authorization from the respective Advisor or Sub-Advisor. The Code of Ethics lists situations in which transactions are exempt and thus covered persons may engage in exempted transactions without following the procedures set forth in the Code of Ethics. Access persons are required to make initial and annual reports of their securities holdings and to file quarterly securities transaction reports with the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor even if no securities transactions occurred and no new securities accounts were opened during the relevant quarter. Each employee is required to certify that he or she has read, understands and has complied with the Code of Ethics.

The Distributor's Code of Ethics is designed to clearly state, and inform its access persons about, prohibited activities in which employees may not engage. The Distributor's Code of Ethics prohibits its access persons from purchasing or selling securities based upon any material nonpublic information to which they have access solely as a result of their employment with the Distributor, and prohibits informing others, who may act on such information, about material nonpublic information about the Distributor or one of its clients.

The Codes of Ethics of the Trust, the Investment Advisor, the Sub-Advisor and the Distributor are on public file with and available from the SEC.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

It is the Fund's policy that proxies received by the Fund are voted in the best interest of the Fund's shareholders. The Board of Trustees of the Fund has adopted Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures for the Fund that delegate all responsibility for voting proxies received relating to the Fund's securities to the Investment Advisor. The Board of Trustees will periodically review and approve the Investment Advisor's proxy voting policies and procedures and any amendments.

Proxy Voting Guidelines

Forward Management, LLC

For the Forward Funds portfolios for which it exercises proxy voting authority, Forward Management will vote proxies in the best interests of the Fund. Forward Management has contracted with PROXY Governance ("Proxy Governance") to handle administration and voting of these proxies and has directed Proxy Governance to vote all proxies on behalf of the portfolios of the Forward Funds in accordance with Proxy Governance's recommendations. Proxy Governance's stated mission is to provide proxy analysis and recommendations that support the growth of long-term shareholder value. The firm's approach to enhancing overall corporate value growth

through effective proxy voting relies on analysis and recommendations that are developed on an issue-by-company basis. Proxy Governance views proxy issues and provides recommendations in the context of company-specific metrics, taking into account a variety of relevant factors.

Because Forward Management does not exercise discretion in voting proxies for the Forward Funds portfolios but routinely votes proxies according to the Guidelines or the recommendations of Proxy Governance, no potential conflict of interests between Forward Management and the Fund should actually affect the voting of proxies. However, should a conflict arise, Forward Management will use one of the following methods to resolve such conflict, provided such method results in a decision to vote the proxies that is based on the Fund's best interest and is not the product of the conflict:

- "echo vote" or "mirror vote" the proxies in the same proportion as the votes of other proxy holders that are not Forward Management clients; or
- if possible, erect information barriers around the person or persons making voting decisions sufficient to insulate the decision from the conflict.

The following examples illustrate the Investment Advisor's Guidelines with respect to certain typical proxy votes. This summary is not an exhaustive list of all the issues that may arise or of all the matters addressed in the Guidelines, and whether the Investment Advisor supports or opposes a proposal will depend upon the specific facts and circumstances described in the proxy statement and other available information.

Board of Directors. The Investment Advisor will vote for uncontested director nominees. The Investment Advisor will withhold votes from director nominees if (i) the board lacks an audit, compensation or nominating committee; (ii) the board will consist of more than 11 directors after the election; (iii) the board will consist of fewer than 7 directors after the election; (iv) the company has adopted a classified board structure; or (v) the company does not have an independent chair or lead director. The Investment Advisor will also withhold votes from any director nominee (i) attending less than 75% of the board and committee meetings during the previous fiscal year; (ii) who is retired from active employment and who serves on boards at four other major companies; (iii) who is employed full-time and who serves on board at two other major companies; (iv) who serves on the audit committee if non-audit services exceed 50% of fees; or (v) who is non-independent and serves on the nominating, audit or compensation committee if 25% of committee members are not independent. The Investment Advisor will withhold votes from directors' nominees on a case by case basis if the board does not include at least one woman director and one minority director.

Mergers/Acquisitions. The Investment Advisor will vote on a case by case basis for a management proposal to merge with or acquire another company. The Investment Advisor will vote against a merger/acquisition if (i) the combined entity would be controlled by a person or group; (ii) the change-in-control provision would be triggered; (iii) the current shareholders would be minority owners of the combined company; or (iv) the combined entity would reincorporate or change its governance structure. The Investment Advisor will vote on a case by case basis on a proposal that would move the target company's location outside the U.S.

Conflicts of Interest. When a proxy presents a conflict of interest to the Investment Advisor, the Investment Advisor may: (i) vote in accordance with its proxy policy if it involves little or no discretion; (ii) vote as recommended by a third party service if the Investment Advisor utilizes such a service; (iii) "echo vote" or "mirror vote" the proxies in the same proportion as the votes of other proxy holders that are not Advisor clients; (iv) if possible, erect information barriers around the person or persons making voting decisions sufficient to insulate the decision from the conflict; (v) if practical, notify affected clients of the conflict of interest and seek a waiver of the conflict; or (vi) if agreed upon in writing with the client, forward the proxies to affected clients allowing them to vote their own proxies.

Broadmark Asset Management, LLC

Statement of Policy

Proxy voting is an important right of shareholders and reasonable care and diligence must be undertaken to ensure that such rights are properly and timely exercised. When the Broadmark has discretion to vote the proxies of its clients, it will vote those proxies in the best interest of its clients and in accordance with these policies and procedures. Broadmark may retain a third party to assist it in coordinating and voting proxies with respect to client securities.

Proxy Voting Procedures

All proxies received by Broadmark will be sent to the Portfolio Manager. The Portfolio Manager will:

- Keep a record of each proxy received;
- Determine which accounts managed by Broadmark hold the security to which the proxy relates;
- Obtain a list of accounts that hold the security, together with the number of votes each account controls (reconciling any duplications), and the date by which Broadmark must vote the proxy in order to allow enough time for the completed proxy to be returned to the issuer prior to the vote taking place;

- Absent material conflicts (see the Disclosure Section below), the Portfolio Manager will determine how Broadmark should vote the proxy and is responsible for completing the proxy and mailing the proxy in a timely and appropriate manner; and
- Broadmark may retain a third party to assist it in coordinating and voting proxies with respect to client securities. If so, the Compliance Officer will monitor the third party to assure that all proxies are being properly voted and appropriate records are being retained.

Voting Guidelines

In the absence of specific voting guidelines from the client, Broadmark will vote proxies in the best interests of each particular client, which may result in different voting results for proxies for the same issuer. Broadmark believes that voting proxies in accordance with the following guidelines is in the best interests of its clients.

- Generally, Broadmark will vote in favor of routine corporate housekeeping proposals, including election of directors (where no corporate governance issues are implicated), selection of auditors, and increases in or reclassification of common stock.
- Generally, Broadmark will vote against proposals that make it more difficult to replace members of the issuer's board of directors, including proposals to stagger the board, cause management to be overrepresented on the board, introduce cumulative voting, introduce unequal voting rights, and create supermajority voting.

For other proposals, Broadmark shall determine whether a proposal is in the best interests of it clients and may take into account the following factors, among others:

- whether the proposal was recommended by management and Broadmark's opinion of management;
- whether the proposal acts to entrench existing management; and
- whether the proposal fairly compensates management for past and future performance.

Conflicts of Interest

The Chief Investment Officer with the Portfolio Manager will identify any conflicts that exist between the interests of Broadmark and its clients. This examination will include a review of the relationship of Broadmark and its affiliates with the issuer of each security and any of the issuer's affiliates to determine if the issuer is a client of Broadmark or an affiliate of Broadmark or has some other relationship with Broadmark or a client of Broadmark.

If a material conflict exists, Broadmark will determine whether voting in accordance with the voting guidelines and factors described above is in the best interests of the client. Broadmark will also determine whether it is appropriate to disclose the conflict to the affected clients and, except in the case of clients that are subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), give the clients the opportunity to vote their proxies themselves. In the case of ERISA clients, if the Investment Management Agreement reserves to the ERISA client the authority to vote proxies when Broadmark determines it has a material conflict that affects its best judgment as an ERISA fiduciary, Broadmark will give the ERISA client the opportunity to vote the proxies themselves.

Fund's Proxy Voting Records

Information on how the Fund voted proxies relating to portfolio securities from inception through the period ended June 30, 2011 will be available: (1) without charge, upon request, by calling (800) 999-6809; and (2) filed on Form N-PX on the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov.

Administrative Services and Transfer Agent

ALPS Fund Services, Inc. (hereinafter "AFS," "Administrator" and "Transfer Agent"), whose principal business address is 1290 Broadway, Suite 1100, Denver, CO 80203, acts as the Fund's administrator. As Administrator, AFS performs corporate secretarial, treasury, and blue sky services and acts as fund accounting agent for the Fund. For its services as Administrator, the Funds pay AFS the greater of \$2,304,000 or fees based on the annual net assets of the Funds, accrued daily and payable monthly by the Funds at the following annual rate:

Annual Net Assets of the Funds	Annual Fee
Up to and including \$1 billion	0.065%
In excess of \$1 billion	0.030%

The Amended and Restated Administration Agreement between the Fund and AFS was dated and effective as of April 12, 2010. The Amended and Restated Administration Agreement has an initial term of three years and will renew automatically for successive one-year terms.

Pursuant to an Amended and Restated Transfer Agency and Services Agreement dated June 3, 2009 and effective as of June 15, 2009, AFS acts as transfer agent and dividend disbursing agent for the Trust. The Transfer Agency and Services Agreement has an initial term of three years and automatically renews for successive one-year terms. Shareholder inquiries may be directed to AFS at P.O. Box 1345, Denver, CO 80201.

In certain instances, other intermediaries may perform some or all of the transaction processing, recordkeeping or shareholder services which would otherwise be provided by the Transfer Agent. Forward Management or its affiliates may make payments out of their own assets, to intermediaries, including those that sell shares of the Fund, for transaction processing, recordkeeping or shareholder services. For example, shares in the Fund may be owned by certain intermediaries for the benefit of their customers. Because the Transfer Agent often does not maintain Fund accounts for shareholders in those instances, some or all of the recordkeeping services for these accounts may be performed by intermediaries. In addition, retirement plans may hold Fund shares in the name of the plan, rather than the name of the participant. Plan recordkeepers, who may have affiliated financial intermediaries who sell shares of the Fund may, at the discretion of a retirement plan's named fiduciary or administrator, be paid for providing services that would otherwise have been performed by the Transfer Agent. Payments may also be made to plan trustees to defray plan expenses or otherwise for the benefit of plan participants and beneficiaries. For certain types of tax exempt plans, payments may be made to a plan custodian or other entity which holds plan assets. Payments may also be made to offset charges for certain services such as plan participant communications, provided by Forward Management or an affiliate or by an unaffiliated third party.

Other Service Providers

The Fund pays all expenses not assumed by the Investment Advisor or the Administrator. Expenses paid by the Fund include, but are not limited to: custodian, stock transfer and dividend disbursing fees, and accounting and recordkeeping expenses; Rule 12b-1 fees, if any, and shareholder service fees pursuant to distribution or service plans; costs of designing, printing, and mailing reports, prospectuses, proxy statements and notices to its shareholders; taxes and insurance; expenses of the issuance, sale or repurchase of shares of the Fund (including federal and state registration and qualification expenses); legal and auditing fees and expenses; compensation, fees and expenses paid to Trustees who are not interested persons of the Trust; association dues; costs of stationery and forms prepared exclusively for the Fund; and trade organization dues and fees. In addition, as noted above, the Trust has agreed to pay the Investment Advisor a fee in the amount of \$300,000 per annum as compensation for providing an officer or employee of the Investment Advisor to serve as Chief Compliance Officer for the Funds (each such series of the Trust bearing its pro rata share of the fee), plus the cost of reasonable expenses related to the performance of the Chief Compliance Officer's duties, including travel expenses, and may compensate the Investment Advisor for the time of other officers or employees of the Investment Advisor who serve in other compliance capacities for the Funds.

Distribution Plans and Shareholder Services Plan

Distribution Plans

The Fund has adopted service and distribution plans pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act with respect to the Class A, Class C and Investor Class shares of the Fund (the "Distribution Plans"). The purpose of the Distribution Plans is to permit the Fund to compensate the Distributor, banks, brokers, dealers, administrators and other financial intermediaries for services provided and expenses incurred by them in promoting the sale of Class A, Class C and Investor Class shares of the Fund or maintaining or improving services provided to Class A, Class C and Investor Class shareholders. By promoting the sale of shares and maintaining or improving services to shareholders, the Distribution Plans should help provide reduced shareholder redemptions through established relationships provided by financial intermediaries therefore affording the Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor the ability to purchase and redeem portfolio securities without forcing the Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor to make unwanted sales of existing portfolio securities

Under the Distribution Plan for the Class A shares of the Fund, the Fund pays the fees to the Distributor on a monthly basis at an annual rate not to exceed 0.35% of the Fund's average net assets attributable to Class A shares. Under the Distribution Plan for the Class C shares of the Fund, the Fund pays the fees to the Distributor on a monthly basis at an annual rate not to exceed 0.75% of the Fund's average net assets attributable to Class C shares. Under the Distribution Plan for the Investor Class shares of the Fund, the Fund pays the fees to the Distributor on a monthly basis at an annual rate not to exceed 0.25% of the Fund's average net assets attributable to Investor Class shares. Expenses acceptable for payment under the Distribution Plan include but are not limited to: (i) compensation of broker-dealers or other persons for providing assistance in distribution and for promotion of the sale of the Class A, Class C and Investor Class shares of the Fund; (ii) expenses of printing and distributing the prospectuses, SAI and reports to prospective holders of Investor Class shares of the Fund; (iii) expenses of preparing and distributing sales literature and related

expenses, advertisements, and other distribution-related expenses, including a pro-rated portion of the Distributor's expenses attributable to each of the Class A, Class C and Investor Class of shares related to implementing and operating the Distribution Plan; (iv) providing information periodically to existing shareholders; (v) forwarding communications from the Trust to shareholders; (vi) responding to inquiries from shareholders regarding their investment in the Fund; (vii) other services qualifying under applicable rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA"); (viii) administrative services such as transfer agent and sub-transfer agent services for shareholders; (ix) aggregating and processing purchase and redemption orders for Fund shares; (x) preparing statements for shareholders; (xi) processing dividend payments; (xii) providing sub-accounting services; (xiii) receiving, tabulating and transmitting proxies executed by shareholders; (xiv) and other personal services in connection with shareholder accounts (collectively "Sales and/or Services Support"). The Fund's Investment Advisor is responsible for paying the Distributor for any unreimbursed distribution expenses.

For more information on fees paid by the Fund please see "Distributions and Shareholder Services Plan" in the Fund's prospectus.

Because the fees under the Distribution Plan are paid out of a Fund's assets attributable to the Class A, Class C and Investor Class shares on an ongoing basis, over time these fees will increase the cost of your investment in Class A shares and may cost you more than paying other types of sales charges.

The Distribution Plans are governed by Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act, which includes requirements that the Board of Trustees receive and review, at least quarterly, reports concerning the nature and qualification of services and expenses that are paid for or reimbursed. Continuance of each Distribution Plan is subject to annual approval by a vote of the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees and who have no direct or indirect interest in the Distribution Plan or related arrangements, cast in person at a meeting called for that purpose. All material amendments to the Distribution Plan must likewise be approved by separate votes of the Trustees and the Independent Trustees. A Distribution Plan may not be amended in order to increase materially the costs which a Fund bears for distribution pursuant to the Distribution Plan without also being approved by a majority of the outstanding voting securities of a Fund. Any agreement pursuant to a Distribution Plan may be terminated without penalty, at any time, by a vote of the majority of (i) the outstanding voting securities of the relevant class, or (ii) the Independent Trustees.

For purposes of paying for record-keeping and administrative services under the Distribution Plan, the Distributor and financial intermediaries normally calculate payment on the basis of an average running balance over a quarter; however, the Distributor may enter into agreements providing for a different method of calculating "average net asset value". In addition, the Distributor may suspend or modify any of the Distribution Plans at any time. Payments are subject to the continuation of the Distribution Plan described above and the terms of service agreements between financial intermediaries and the Distributor.

The Fund participates from time to time in joint distribution activities. Fees paid under a Distribution Plan may be used to finance Sales and/or Service Support of other Forward Funds, and the expenses will be allocated on the relative net asset size of the Fund.

Shareholder Services Plan

The Fund has also adopted a shareholder services plan, which is separate from the Distribution Plans described above, with respect to the Class A, Class C, Class M, Investor Class and Institutional Class shares of the Fund (the "Shareholder Services Plan"). The Trust intends to operate the Shareholder Services Plan in accordance with its terms. Under the Shareholder Services Plan, the Fund is authorized to pay to banks, brokers, dealers, administrators and other financial intermediaries or third party service providers a payment each month in connection with non-distribution related services provided to shareholders. Payments under the Shareholder Services Plan are calculated daily and paid monthly at an annual rate not to exceed 0.20% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to Class A shares, 0.25% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to Class M shares, 0.15% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to Investor Class shares and 0.05% of the average daily net assets attributable to Institutional Class shares.

Under the Shareholder Services Plan, ongoing payments may be made to participating organizations for services including, but not limited to; (i) providing information periodically to existing shareholders; (ii) forwarding communications from the Trust to shareholders; (iii) responding to inquiries from shareholders regarding their investment in the Fund; (iv) other services qualifying under applicable rules of FINRA; (v) administrative services such as transfer agent and sub-transfer agent services for shareholders; (vi) aggregating and processing purchase and redemption orders for Fund shares; (vii) preparing statements for shareholders; (viii) processing dividend payments; (ix) providing sub-accounting services; (x) receiving, tabulating, and transmitting proxies executed by shareholders; (xi) and other personal services provided in connection with shareholder accounts (collectively "Shareholder Services").

For more information on fees paid by the Fund under the Shareholder Services Plan, please see "Distribution and Shareholder Services Plan" in the Fund's prospectus.

In the event the Shareholder Services Plan is terminated with respect to the Fund or class of shares thereof in accordance with its terms, the obligations of the Fund to make payments pursuant to a Shareholder Services Plan with respect to the applicable class of shares will cease and the Fund will not be required to make any payments for expenses incurred after the date the Shareholder Services Plan terminates. Payments may be made under the Shareholder Services Plan without regard to actual shareholder servicing expenses incurred by a recipient.

The Shareholder Services Plan has been approved by the Trust's Board of Trustees, including the Independent Trustees. The Shareholder Services Plan must be renewed annually by the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees, by a vote cast in person at a meeting called for that purpose. The Shareholder Services Plan may be terminated as to a particular class of shares at any time, without any penalty, by such Trustees on 60 days' written notice.

Any change in a Shareholder Services Plan of the Fund that would amend the Shareholder Services Plan or materially increase the expenses paid by the Fund requires approval by the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the operation of a Shareholder Services Plan or in any agreements related to it, by a vote cast in-person.

Amounts paid under the Shareholder Services Plan are reported to the Board of Trustees at least quarterly, and the Board is furnished with such other information as may reasonably be requested in connection with the payments made under the Shareholder Services Plan in order to enable the Board to make an informed determination of whether the Shareholder Services Plan should be continued.

For purposes of paying for record-keeping and administrative services under the Shareholder Services Plan, the Distributor and financial intermediaries normally calculate payment on the basis of an average running balance of the net assets attributable to each class over a quarter; however, the Distributor may enter into agreements with certain financial intermediaries providing for a different method of calculating "average net asset value" during the quarter.

Because fees under the Shareholder Services Plan are paid out of the Fund's assets on an ongoing basis, over time these fees will increase the cost of your investment and may cost you more than paying other types of sales charges.

Additional Payments to Intermediaries

The following is a list of the financial intermediaries that Forward Management or their affiliates have entered into ongoing contractual arrangements with to make additional payments as of January 1, 2010. These additional payments are described in more detail in the "Additional Payments to Intermediaries" section of the prospectuses. Any additions, modifications, or deletions to the financial intermediaries identified in this list that have occurred since January 1, 2010 are not reflected.

ACS HR Solutions, LLC, Ameriprise Financial Services, Inc., Charles Schwab, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., Daily Access Corp., Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC, Fidelity Investment Institutional Operations Company, Inc., Financial Data Services, Inc., First Interstate Bank, GreatBanc Trust Co., GWFS Equities, Inc., ICMA-RC Services, LLC, J.P. Morgan Retirement Plan Services, LLC, Lincoln Retirement Services Company, LPL Financial Services, Mercer HR Outsourcing LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc., MidAtlantic Capital Corp., Morgan Stanley & Co., Incorporated, MSCS Financial Services, LLC, National Financial Services LLC, Nationwide Investment Services Corp., NYLIFE Distributors, Pershing, LLC, Prudential Investment Management Services, LLC, PNC Global Investment Servicing, State Street Bank & Trust, TD Ameritrade Trust Company, The Trust Company of Sterne Agee & Leach, TIAA-Cref Individual & Institutional Services, LLC, UBS Financial Services Inc., Vanguard, Wachovia Bank, N.A., Wachovia Securities, LLC, The Washington Trust Co., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Wilmington Trust Retirement & Institutional Services Company, and Zions First National Bank.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The investment objective of the Fund is a fundamental policy and may not be changed without a vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Fund. Non-fundamental policies of the Fund may be changed by the Board of Trustees without a vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Fund. Any policy not specifically identified as "fundamental" is a non-fundamental policy of the Fund. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of the Fund will be achieved.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The investment restrictions set forth below that are designated as fundamental may not be changed without the approval of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. A majority of a Fund's outstanding voting securities means the lesser of (a) 67% or more of the voting securities present at a meeting if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities are present or represented by proxy or (b) more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities.

If a percentage restriction on investment or use of assets set forth below is adhered to at the time a transaction is effected, later changes will not be considered a violation of the restriction, except that the Fund will take reasonably practicable steps to attempt to continuously monitor and comply with its liquidity standards. Also, if the Fund receives subscription rights to purchase securities of an issuer whose securities the Fund holds, and if the Fund exercises such subscription rights at a time when the Fund's portfolio holdings of securities of that issuer would otherwise exceed a limit, it will not constitute a violation if, prior to the receipt of the securities from the exercise of such rights, and after announcement of such rights, the Fund sells at least as many securities of the same class and value as it would receive on exercise of such rights.

Fundamental Investment Restrictions of the Fund

As a matter of fundamental policy,

- 1. With respect to 75% of its total assets, the Fund may not purchase any security (other than U.S. Government Securities or securities of other investment companies) if, as a result: (i) more than 5% of a Fund's total assets immediately after and as the result of such purchase would be invested in the securities of any one issuer; or (ii) purchase more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of a single issuer. Changes in the market value of a Fund's assets after the time of purchase do not affect the aforementioned calculations.
- 2. The Fund may not purchase the securities of any issuer (other than U.S. Government Securities or securities of other investment companies) if, as a result, more than 25% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in the securities of issuers whose principal business activities are in the same industry. With respect to the Fund's investment in an ETF, the Fund will look through each ETF to the issuer of the securities held by the ETF, as if the Fund had invested in those securities directly. Similarly, with respect to the Fund's investment in swap agreements (other than credit default swap agreements), the Fund will look through each swap agreement to the reference issuers that constitute the swap agreement's reference investment, as if the Fund had invested directly in those issuers in the same proportion to which each issue contributes to the reference investment.
- 3. The Fund may not issue senior securities or borrow money, except to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. For purposes of this restriction, the entering into of options, short sales, futures, forwards and other investment techniques or derivatives contracts, and collateral and margin arrangements with respect to such transactions, are not deemed to include the borrowing or the issuance of senior securities provided such transactions are "covered" in accordance with procedures established by the Board of Trustees and applicable regulatory guidance.
- 4. The Fund may not purchase or sell commodities or commodities contracts. This restriction shall not prohibit the Fund, subject to restrictions described in the prospectuses and elsewhere in this SAI, from purchasing or selling options and futures contracts or from investing in securities or other instruments backed by commodities, subject to compliance with any applicable provisions of the federal securities or commodities laws.
- 5. The Fund may not make loans, except to the extent permitted under the 1940 Act and the rules promulgated thereunder, as may be amended from time to time.
- 6. The Fund may not underwrite the securities of other issuers, except to the extent that the Fund may be considered an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 in the disposition of restricted securities or in connection with the investment in other investment companies.
- 7. The Fund may not purchase or sell real estate unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments (but this shall not prevent the Fund from investing in securities or other instruments backed by real estate (*e.g.*, REITs) or securities of companies engaged in the real estate business).

Other Investment Restrictions

In addition to the fundamental investment restrictions listed above, the Fund has also adopted the non-fundamental investment restrictions set forth below. These non-fundamental restrictions may be changed by the Board of Trustees without shareholder approval.

Non-Fundamental Investment Restrictions of the Fund

The Fund will not invest in securities of other registered investment companies in reliance on subparagraphs (F) or (G) of Section 12(d)(1) of the 1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act, absent specific exemptive relief, the Fund may not: (i) acquire more than 3% of the voting securities of any other investment company, (ii) invest more than 5% of its total assets in securities of any one investment company, and (iii) invest more than 10% of its total assets in securities of all investment companies. Many ETFs have obtained exemptive relief from the SEC to permit unaffiliated funds to invest in the ETF's shares beyond the above statutory limitations, subject to certain conditions and pursuant to a contractual arrangement between the particular ETF and the investing fund. The Fund may rely on these exemptive orders to invest in unaffiliated ETFs.

ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES AND RISKS

Additional information concerning investment techniques and risks associated with certain of the Fund's investments is set forth below. From time to time, the Fund may purchase these securities or enter into these strategies to an extent that is more than incidental.

Bank Obligations

The Fund may invest in bank obligations such as bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, and time deposits. Bankers' acceptances are negotiable drafts or bills of exchange typically drawn by an importer or exporter to pay for specific merchandise, which are "accepted" by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on maturity. Bankers' acceptances, along with notes issued by banking institutions, are only as secure as the creditworthiness of the issuing or accepting depository institution. Certificates of deposit are negotiable certificates issued against funds deposited in a commercial bank or a savings and loan association for a definite period of time and earning a specified return.

Borrowing

The Fund may borrow for temporary administrative or emergency purposes and this borrowing may be unsecured. The Fund may also borrow from banks and broker-dealers and engage in reverse repurchase agreements for purposes of investing the borrowed funds. Under the 1940 Act, the Fund is required to maintain continuous asset coverage (that is, total assets including borrowings, less liabilities exclusive of borrowings) of 300% of the amount borrowed. If the 300% asset coverage should decline as a result of market fluctuations or other reasons, the Fund may be required to sell some of its portfolio holdings within three days to reduce its borrowings and restore the 300% asset coverage, even though it may be disadvantageous from an investment standpoint to sell securities at that time. The percentage of the Fund's total assets that may be leveraged because of reverse repurchase agreements will vary during the fiscal year depending on the portfolio management strategies of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. Borrowing may exaggerate the effect on net asset value of any increase or decrease in the market value of the portfolio. Money borrowed will be subject to interest costs which may or may not be recovered by appreciation of the securities purchased. The Fund also may be required to maintain minimum average balances in connection with such borrowing or to pay a commitment or other fee to maintain a line of credit; either of these requirements would increase the cost of borrowing over the stated interest rate.

Commercial Paper and Variable Amount Demand Master Notes

The Fund may invest in commercial paper, which represent short-term unsecured promissory notes issued (in bearer form) by banks or bank holding companies, corporations and finance companies. The Fund may also invest in variable amount demand master notes, which are corporate obligations of issuing organizations that share the credit profile of commercial paper (*e.g.*, banks or corporations). The distinct difference between commercial paper and variable amount demand master notes is in the liquidity characteristics of the issuance. While commercial paper is mostly negotiable, with a robust secondary trading market for rated issuers, variable amount demand master notes are issued by a bank or corporation and liquidated on demand. Further, there is no secondary market for variable amount demand master notes. Typically the issuance of a variable amount demand master note consists of two parts, an "A" note and a "B" note. Both carry an interest rate higher than the commercial paper issued by the same issuer, meant to compensate for the increased liquidity risk. Most often the "A" note is for a fixed investment amount, and can only be redeemed with a fixed notice, such as six to twelve months. The "B" note can be redeemed at any time for any amount presently outstanding.

In selecting commercial paper and other corporate obligations for investment by the Fund, Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor also considers information concerning the financial history and condition of the issuer and its revenue and expense prospects. If commercial paper or another corporate obligation held by the Fund is assigned a lower rating or ceases to be rated, Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor will promptly reassess whether that security presents credit risks consistent with the Fund's credit quality restrictions and whether the Fund should continue to hold the security in its portfolio. If a portfolio security no longer presents credit risks consistent with the Fund's credit quality restrictions or is in default, the Fund will dispose of the security as soon as reasonably practicable unless Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor determines that to do so is not in the best interests of the Fund and its shareholders. Variable amount demand master notes with demand periods of greater than seven days will be deemed to be liquid and only if they are determined to be so in compliance with procedures approved by the Board of Trustees.

Convertible Securities

The Fund may invest in convertible securities, which may offer higher income than the common stocks into which they are convertible. Typically, convertible securities are callable by the company, which may, in effect, force conversion before the holder would otherwise choose.

The convertible securities in which the Fund may invest consist of bonds, notes, debentures, and preferred stocks that may be converted or exchanged at a stated or determinable exchange ratio into underlying shares of common stock. The Fund may be required to permit the issuer of a convertible security to redeem the security, convert it into the underlying common stock or sell it to a third party. Thus, the Fund may not be able to control whether the issuer of a convertible security chooses to force conversion of that security. If the issuer chooses to do so, this action could have an adverse effect on the Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.

In carrying out this policy, the Fund may purchase convertible bonds and convertible preferred stock which may be exchanged for a stated number of shares of the issuer's common stock at a price known as the conversion price. The conversion price is usually greater than the price of the common stock at the time of purchase of the convertible security. The interest rate of convertible bonds and the yield of convertible preferred stock will generally be lower than that of the non-convertible securities. While the value of the convertible securities will usually vary with the value of the underlying common stock and will normally fluctuate inversely with interest rates, it may show less volatility in value than the non-convertible securities. A risk associated with the purchase of convertible bonds and convertible preferred stock is that the conversion price of the common stock will not be attained. The Fund will purchase only those convertible securities which have underlying common stock with potential for long-term growth in the opinion of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. The Fund will only invest in investment-grade convertible securities (those rated in the top four categories by either S&P or Moody's).

Counterparty Credit Risk

Commodity and financial-linked derivative instruments are subject to the risk that the counterparty to the instrument might not pay interest when due or repay principal at maturity of the obligation. If a counterparty defaults on its interest or principal payment obligations to the Fund, this default will cause the value of your investment in the Fund to decrease. In addition, the Fund will invest in commodity- and financial-linked structured notes issued by a limited number of issuers, which will act as counterparties. To the extent the Fund focuses its investments in a limited number of issuers, it will be more susceptible to the risks associated with those issuers.

Debt Securities

The market value of debt securities generally varies in response to changes in interest rates and the financial condition of each issuer. During periods of declining interest rates, the value of debt securities generally increases. Conversely, during periods of rising interest rates, the value of such securities generally declines. These changes in market value will be reflected in the Fund's net asset value and could also impact the amount of income the Fund generates through debt investments. The rate of interest on a corporate debt security may be fixed, floating or variable, and may vary inversely with respect to a reference rate. See "Variable and Floating Rate Securities." The rate of return or return of principal on some debt obligations may be linked or indexed to the level of exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and a foreign currency or currencies. An issuer of a debt security may repay principal prior to a security's maturity, which can adversely affect the Fund's yield, particularly during periods of declining interest rates. Rising interest rates may cause prepayments to occur at slower than expected rates, which effectively lengthens the maturities of the affected securities, making them more sensitive to interest rate changes and the Fund's net asset value more volatile.

The Fund may invest in debt securities that are rated between "BBB" and as low as "CCC" by S&P and between "Baa" and as low as "Caa" by Moody's or, if unrated, are of equivalent investment quality as determined by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. Such debt securities may include preferred stocks, investment-grade corporate bonds, debentures and notes, and other similar corporate debt instruments, convertible securities, municipal bonds, and high-quality short-term debt securities such as commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies, and demand and time deposits of domestic banks, U.S. branches and subsidiaries of foreign banks and foreign branches of U.S. banks. Debt securities may be acquired with warrants attached. Corporate income-producing securities may also include forms of preferred or preference stock. Investments in corporate debt securities that are rated below investment grade (rated below "BBB" by S&P or "Baa" by Moody's) are considered speculative with respect to the issuer's ability to pay interest and repay principal.

Rating agencies may periodically change the rating assigned to a particular security. If a debt security satisfies the Fund's minimum rating requirement (rated at or above "CCC" by S&P, or "Caa" by Moody's, or, if unrated, such security is of at least equivalent investment quality as determined by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor) when purchased, a subsequent downgrade does not require the sale of the security, but Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor will consider which action is in the best interest of the Fund and its shareholders, including the sale of the security.

Bonds that are rated "Baa" by Moody's are considered as medium grade obligations, *i.e.*, they are neither highly protected nor poorly secured. Interest payments and principal security appear adequate for the present but certain protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any great length of time. Such bonds lack outstanding investment characteristics and in fact have speculative characteristics as well. Bonds that are rated C by Moody's are the lowest rated class of bonds and can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of attaining any real investment standing.

Bonds rated "BBB" by S&P are regarded as having an adequate capacity to pay interest and repay principal. Whereas they normally exhibit adequate protection parameters, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity to pay interest and repay principal for bonds in this category than in higher rated categories. Bonds rated "D" by S&P are the lowest rated class of bonds and generally are in payment default. The "D" rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition if debt service payments are jeopardized.

Although they may offer higher yields than higher-rated securities, high-risk, low-rated debt securities (commonly referred to as "junk bonds") and unrated debt securities generally involve greater volatility of price and risk of principal and income, including the possibility of default by, or bankruptcy of, the issuers of the securities. In addition, the markets in which low-rated and unrated debt securities are traded are more limited than those in which higher-rated securities are traded. The existence of limited markets for particular securities may diminish the Fund's ability to sell the securities at fair value either to meet redemption requests or to respond to a specific economic event such as a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuer. Reduced secondary market liquidity for certain low-rated or unrated debt securities may also make it more difficult for the Fund to obtain accurate market quotations for the purposes of valuing their portfolios. Market quotations are generally available on many low-rated or unrated securities only from a limited number of dealers and may not necessarily represent firm bids of such dealers or prices for actual sales.

Adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may decrease the values and liquidity of low-rated debt securities, especially in a thinly traded market. Analysis of the creditworthiness of issuers of low-rated debt securities may be more complex than for issuers of higher-rated securities, and the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment objective may, to the extent of investment in low-rated debt securities, be more dependent upon such creditworthiness analysis than would be the case if the Fund were investing in higher-rated securities. In addition, the use of credit ratings as the sole method of evaluating low-rated securities can involve certain risks. For example, credit ratings evaluate the safety of principal and interest payments, not the market value risk of low-rated securities. In addition, credit rating agencies may fail to change credit ratings in a timely fashion to reflect events since the security was most recently rated.

Low-rated debt securities may be more susceptible to real or perceived adverse economic and competitive industry conditions than investment grade securities. The prices of low-rated debt securities have been found to be less sensitive to interest rate changes than higher-rated investments, but more sensitive to adverse economic downturns or individual corporate developments. A projection of an economic downturn or of a period of rising interest rates, for example, could cause a decline in low-rated debt securities prices because the advent of a recession could lessen the ability of a highly leveraged company to make principal and interest payments on its debt securities. If the issuer of low-rated debt securities defaults, the Fund may incur additional expenses seeking recovery.

Depositary Receipts

The Fund may purchase sponsored or unsponsored American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"), European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs"), and Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs") (collectively, "Depositary Receipts"). ADRs are Depositary Receipts typically issued by a U.S. bank or trust company which evidence ownership of underlying securities issued by a foreign corporation. EDRs and GDRs are typically issued by foreign banks or foreign trust companies, although they also may be issued by U.S. banks or trust companies, and evidence ownership of underlying securities issued by either a foreign or a U.S. corporation. Generally, Depositary Receipts in registered form are designed for use in the U.S. securities market and Depositary Receipts in bearer form are designed for use in securities markets outside the U.S. Depositary Receipts may not necessarily be denominated in the same currency as the underlying securities into which they may be converted. Depositary Receipts may be issued pursuant to sponsored or unsponsored programs. In sponsored programs, the underlying issuer has made arrangements to have its securities traded in the form of Depositary Receipts. In unsponsored programs, the underlying issuer may not be directly involved in the creation of the program. Although regulatory requirements with respect to sponsored and unsponsored programs are generally similar, in some cases it may be easier to obtain financial information from an underlying issuer that has participated in the creation of a sponsored program. Accordingly, there may be less information available regarding underlying issuers of securities in unsponsored programs and there may not be a correlation between such information and the market value of the Depositary Receipts. Depositary Receipts also involve the risks of other investments in foreign securities, as further discussed below in this section. For purposes of the Fund's investment policies, the Fund's investments in Depositary Receipts will be deemed to be investments in the underlying securities.

Derivative Instruments

The Fund may purchase and write call and put options on securities, securities indexes and foreign currencies, and enter into futures contracts and use options on futures contracts as further described below. The Fund may also enter into swap agreements with respect to foreign currencies, interest rates and securities indexes. The Fund may use these techniques to hedge against changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates or securities prices or to attempt to achieve investment returns as part of its overall investment strategies. The Fund may also purchase and sell options relating to foreign currencies for purposes of increasing exposure to a foreign currency or to shift exposure to foreign currency fluctuations from one country to another. The Fund will segregate or "earmark"

assets determined to be liquid by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor in accordance with procedures established by the Board of Trustees (or, as permitted by applicable regulation, enter into certain offsetting positions) to cover its obligations under options, futures, and swaps to avoid leveraging the portfolio of the Fund as described below.

The Fund considers derivative instruments to consist of securities or other instruments whose value is derived from or related to the value of some other instrument or asset, and not to include those securities whose payment of principal and/or interest depends upon cash flows from underlying assets, such as mortgage-related or asset-backed securities. The value of some derivative instruments in which the Fund invests may be particularly sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates, and, like the other investments of the Fund, the ability of the Fund to successfully utilize these instruments may depend in part upon the ability of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor to correctly forecast interest rates and other economic factors. If Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor incorrectly forecasts such factors and has taken positions in derivative instruments contrary to prevailing market trends, the Fund could be exposed to the risk of loss. In addition, while the use of derivatives for hedging purposes can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains, and hedges are sometimes subject to imperfect matching between the derivative and security it is hedging, which means that a hedge might not be effective. The Fund might not employ any of the strategies described above, and no assurance can be given that any strategy used will succeed. A decision as to whether, when and how to utilize derivative instruments involves the exercise of skill and judgment, and even a well-conceived derivatives strategy may be unsuccessful. The use of derivative instruments involves brokerage fees and/or other transaction costs, which will be borne by the Fund.

Investment in commodity-linked derivatives may subject the Fund to additional risks, and in particular may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. The value of commodity-linked derivative instruments may be affected by changes in overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in interest rates or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity, such as drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs, and international economic, political and regulatory developments. In order to qualify for the special tax treatment available to regulated investment companies under the Internal Revenue Code, the Fund must derive at least 90% of its gross income each taxable year from certain specified types of investments. It is currently unclear which types of commodities-linked derivatives fall within these specified investment types. As a result, if the Fund's investment in commodities-linked derivatives were to exceed a certain threshold, the Fund could fail to qualify for the special tax treatment available to regulated investment companies under the Internal Revenue Code.

Dividend Rolls

The Fund may perform "dividend rolls." A dividend roll is an arrangement in which the Fund purchases stock in a U.S. corporation that is about to pay a dividend. The Fund then collects the dividend. If applicable requirements are met, the dividend will qualify for the corporate "dividends-received deduction."

Duration

Duration is one of the fundamental tools used by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor in security selection for the Fund. Duration is a measure of the price sensitivity of a security or a portfolio to relative changes in interest rates. For instance, a duration of "three" means that a portfolio's or security's price would be expected to change by approximately 3% with a 1% change in interest rates. Assumptions generally accepted by the industry concerning the probability of early payment and other factors may be used in the calculation of duration for debt securities that contain put or call provisions, sometimes resulting in a duration different from the stated maturity of the security. With respect to certain mortgage-backed securities, duration is likely to be substantially less than the stated maturity of the mortgages in the underlying pools. The maturity of a security measures only the time until final payment is due and, in the case of a mortgage-backed security, does not take into account the factors included in duration.

Equity Securities

The Fund may invest in equity securities without regard to market capitalization. Equity securities consist of exchange-traded, over-the-counter and unlisted common and preferred stocks, warrants, rights, convertible debt securities, trust certificates, limited partnership interests, and equity participations.

Investments in equity securities are subject to a number of risks, including the financial risk of selecting individual companies that do not perform as anticipated, the risk that the stock markets in which the Fund invests may experience periods of turbulence and instability, and the general risk that domestic and global economies may go through periods of decline and cyclical change. Many factors affect an individual company's performance, such as the strength of its management or the demand for its products or services, and the value of the Fund's equity investments may change in response to stock market movements, information or financial results regarding the issuer, general market conditions, general economic and/or political conditions, and other factors.

Exchange-Traded Funds ("ETFs")

The Fund may invest in shares of ETFs. ETFs are baskets of securities that, like stocks, trade on exchanges such as the American Stock Exchange or New York Stock Exchange. ETFs are priced continuously and trade throughout the day. Each share represents an undivided ownership interest in the portfolio of stocks held by an ETF. ETFs acquire and hold either:

- shares of all of the companies that are represented by a particular index in the same proportion that is represented in the index itself;
- shares of a sampling of the companies that are represented by a particular index in a proportion meant to track the performance of the entire index; or
- shares of companies included in a basket of securities.

The value of shares of ETFs that are intended to provide investment results that, before expenses, generally correspond to the price and yield performance of the corresponding market index or basket of securities, should, under normal circumstances, closely track the value of the underlying component stocks. Such ETFs generally do not buy or sell securities, except to the extent necessary to conform their portfolios to the corresponding index. Because an ETF has operating expenses and transaction costs, while a market index or basket of securities does not, ETFs that track particular indices or baskets of securities typically will be unable to match the performance of the index or basket of securities exactly. The Fund's investment in ETFs will be subject to the risks of investing in the ETFs' underlying securities.

In connection with its investment in ETF shares, the Fund will incur various costs. The Fund may also realize capital gains when ETF shares are sold, and the purchase and sale of the ETF shares may include a brokerage commission that may result in costs. In addition, the Fund is subject to other fees as an investor in ETFs. Generally, those fees include, but are not limited to, Trustees' fees, operating expenses, licensing fees, registration fees, and marketing expenses.

ETFs that are organized as unit investment trusts are registered under the 1940 Act as investment companies. Examples of such ETFs include iShares and Standard & Poor's Depositary Receipts ("SPDRs"). These ETFs generally do not sell or redeem their shares for cash, and most investors do not purchase or redeem shares directly from an ETF at all. Instead, these ETF issues and redeems its shares in large blocks (typically 50,000 of its shares) called "creation units." Creation units are issued to anyone who deposits a specified portfolio of these ETFs' underlying securities, as well as a cash payment generally equal to accumulated dividends of the securities (net of expenses) up to the time of deposit, and creation units are redeemed in kind for a portfolio of the underlying securities (based on the ETF's net asset value) together with a cash payment generally equal to accumulated dividends as of the date of redemption. Most ETF investors, however, purchase and sell these ETF shares in the secondary trading market on a securities exchange, in lots of any size, at any time during the trading day. ETF investors generally must pay a brokerage fee for each purchase or sale of these ETF shares, including purchases made to reinvest dividends. Because these ETF shares are created from the stocks of an underlying portfolio and can be redeemed into the stocks of an underlying portfolio on any day, arbitrage traders may move to profit from any price discrepancies between the shares and the ETF's portfolio, which in turn helps to close the price gap between the two. Of course, because of the forces of supply and demand and other market factors, there may be times when an ETF share trades at a premium or discount to its net asset value.

Aggressive ETF Investment Technique Risk. These ETFs may use investment techniques and financial instruments that could be considered aggressive, including the use of futures contracts, options on futures contracts, securities and indices, forward contracts, swap agreements, and similar instruments. An ETF's investment in financial instruments may involve a small investment relative to the amount of investment exposure assumed and may result in losses exceeding the amounts invested in those instruments. Such instruments, particularly when used to create leverage, may expose the ETF to potentially dramatic changes (losses or gains) in the value of the instruments and imperfect correlation between the value of the instruments and the relevant security or index. The use of aggressive investment techniques also exposes an ETF to risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities contained in an index underlying the ETF's benchmark.

Inverse Correlation ETF Risk. ETFs benchmarked to an inverse multiple of an index should lose value as the index or security underlying such ETF's benchmark is increasing (gaining value), a result that is the opposite from traditional mutual funds.

<u>Leveraged ETF Risk.</u> Leverage offers a means of magnifying market movements into larger changes in an investment's value and provides greater investment exposure than an unleveraged investment. While only certain ETFs employ leverage, many may use leveraged investment techniques for investment purposes. The ETFs that employ leverage will normally lose more money in adverse market environments than ETFs that do not employ leverage. Trading in leveraged ETFs can be relatively illiquid, which means that they may be hard to purchase or sell at a fair price.

Exchange-Traded Notes ("ETNs")

ETNs are senior, unsecured, unsubordinated debt securities issued by a financial institution, listed on an exchange and traded in the secondary market. They are designed to provide investors with a way to access the returns of market benchmarks. ETNs are not

equities or index funds, but they do share several characteristics. For example, like equities, they trade on an exchange and can be shorted. Like an index fund they are linked to the return of a benchmark index.

Unlike regular bonds, there are no periodic interest payments, and principal is not protected. An investor could lose some of or the entire amount invested. The price in the secondary market is determined by supply and demand, the current performance of the index, and the credit rating of the ETN issuer. At maturity, the issuer pays a return linked to the performance of the market index, such as a commodity index, to which the ETN is linked, minus the issuer's annual fee.

ETFs and ETNs

ETFs or ETNs that are based on a specific index may not be able to replicate and maintain exactly the composition and relative weighting of securities in the applicable index and will incur certain expenses not incurred by their applicable index. Certain securities comprising the index tracked by an ETF or ETN may, at times, be temporarily unavailable, which may impede an ETF's or ETN's ability to track its index. Leveraged ETFs and ETNs are subject to the risk of a breakdown in the futures and options markets they use. Leveraged ETFs or ETNs are subject to the same risk as instruments that use leverage in any form. While leverage allows for greater potential return, the potential for loss is also greater. Finally, additional losses may be incurred if the investment loses value because, in addition to the money lost on the investment, the loan still needs to be repaid. The market value of ETF or ETN shares may differ from their net asset value per share. This difference in price may be due to the fact that the supply and demand in the market for ETF or ETN shares at any point in time is not always identical to the supply and demand in the market for the underlying securities that the ETF or ETN holds. There may be times when an ETF or ETN share trades at a premium or discount to its net asset value.

Foreign Currencies

Investments in foreign currencies are subject to numerous risks, not the least of which is the fluctuation of foreign currency exchange rates with respect to the U.S. dollar. Exchange rates fluctuate for a number of reasons.

<u>Inflation</u>. Exchange rates change to reflect changes in a currency's buying power. Different countries experience different inflation rates due to different monetary and fiscal policies, different product and labor market conditions, and a host of other factors.

<u>Trade Deficits</u>. Countries with trade deficits tend to experience a depreciating currency. Inflation may be the cause of a trade deficit, making a country's goods more expensive and less competitive and so reducing demand for its currency.

<u>Interest Rates</u>. High interest rates may raise currency values in the short term by making such currencies more attractive to investors. However, since high interest rates are often the result of high inflation long-term results may be the opposite.

Budget Deficits and Low Savings Rates. Countries that run large budget deficits and save little of their national income tend to suffer a depreciating currency because they are forced to borrow abroad to finance their deficits. Payments of interest on this debt can inundate the currency markets with the currency of the debtor nation. Budget deficits also can indirectly contribute to currency depreciation if a government chooses inflationary measures to cope with its deficits and debt.

<u>Political Factors</u>. Political instability in a country can cause a currency to depreciate. Demand for a certain currency may fall if a country appears a less desirable place in which to invest and do business.

Government Control. Through their own buying and selling of currencies, the world's central banks sometimes manipulate exchange rate movements. In addition, governments occasionally issue statements to influence people's expectations about the direction of exchange rates, or they may instigate policies with an exchange rate target as the goal. The value of the Fund's investments is calculated in U.S. dollars each day that the New York Stock Exchange is open for business. As a result, to the extent that the Fund's assets are invested in instruments denominated in foreign currencies and the currencies appreciate relative to the U.S. dollar, the Fund's net asset value as expressed in U.S. dollars should increase. If the U.S. dollar appreciates relative to the other currencies, the opposite should occur. The currency-related gains and losses experienced by the Fund will be based on changes in the value of portfolio securities attributable to currency fluctuations only in relation to the original purchase price of such securities as stated in U.S. dollars. Gains or losses on shares of the Fund will be based on changes attributable to fluctuations in the net asset value of such shares, expressed in U.S. dollars, in relation to the original U.S. dollar purchase price of the shares. The amount of appreciation or depreciation in the Fund's assets also will be affected by the net investment income generated by the money market instruments in which the Fund invests and by changes in the value of the securities that are unrelated to changes in currency exchange rates.

The Fund may incur currency exchange costs when it sells instruments denominated in one currency and buys instruments denominated in another.

Investments in foreign securities are normally denominated and traded in foreign currencies. The value of the Fund's assets may be affected favorably or unfavorably by currency exchange rates, currency exchange control regulations, and restrictions or prohibitions

on the repatriation of foreign currencies. Some countries in which the Fund may invest may also have fixed or managed currencies that are not free-floating against the U.S. dollar. Further, certain currencies may not be internationally traded. Certain of these currencies have experienced a steady devaluation relative to the U.S. dollar. Any devaluation in the currencies in which the Fund's portfolio securities are denominated may have a detrimental impact on the Fund.

Forward Commitments

The Fund may make contracts to purchase securities for a fixed price at a future date beyond customary settlement time ("forward commitments") consistent with the Fund's ability to manage its investment portfolio and meet redemption requests. The Fund may dispose of a commitment prior to settlement if it is appropriate to do so and realize short-term profits or losses upon such sale. When effecting such transactions, cash or liquid assets of the Fund of a dollar amount sufficient to make payment for the portfolio securities to be purchased, measured on a daily basis, will be segregated or "earmarked" on the Fund's records at the trade date and maintained until the transaction is settled, so that the purchase of securities on a forward commitment basis is not deemed to be the issuance of a senior security. Forward commitments involve a risk of loss if the value of the security to be purchased declines prior to the settlement date.

Futures Contracts and Options on Futures Contracts

The Fund may invest in interest rate, credit linked, debt obligation, stock index and foreign currency futures contracts and options thereon for hedging and non-hedging purposes. A futures contract provides for the future sale by one party and purchase by another party of a specified quantity of the security or other financial instrument at a specified price and time. A futures contract on an index is an agreement pursuant to which two parties agree to take or make delivery of an amount of cash equal to the difference between the value of the index at the close of the last trading day of the contract and the price at which the index contract was originally written. Although the value of an index might be a function of the value of certain specified securities, physical delivery of these securities is not always made. A public market exists in futures contracts covering a number of indexes as well as financial instruments, including without limitation: U.S. Treasury bonds; U.S. Treasury notes; Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA") Certificates; three-month U.S. Treasury bills; 90-day commercial paper; bank certificates of deposit; Eurodollar certificates of deposit; the Australian dollar; the British pound; the Japanese yen; the Swiss franc; the Mexican peso; and certain multinational currencies, such as the euro. It is expected that other futures contracts will be developed and traded in the future.

The Fund may purchase and write call and put futures options. Options on futures contracts give the purchaser the right, in return for the premium paid, to assume a position in a futures contract (a long position if the option is a call and a short position if the option is a put), rather than to purchase or sell the futures contract, at a specified exercise price at any time during the period of the option. Upon exercise of the option, the delivery of the futures position by the writer of the option to the holder of the option will be accompanied by delivery of the accumulated balance in the writer's futures margin account which represents the amount by which the market price of the futures contract, at exercise, exceeds (in the case of a call) or is less than (in the case of a put) the exercise price of the option on the futures contract. If an option is exercised on the last trading day prior to the expiration date of the option, the settlement will be made entirely in cash equal to the difference on the expiration date between the exercise price of the option and the closing level of the securities upon which the futures contracts are based. Purchasers of options who fail to exercise their options prior to the exercise date suffer a loss of the premium paid. As an alternative to purchasing call and put options on futures, the Fund may purchase call and put options on the underlying securities.

The Fund may enter into futures contracts and futures options that are standardized and traded on a U.S. or other exchange, board of trade, or similar entity, or quoted on an automated quotation system, and the Fund may also enter into over-the-counter options on futures contracts.

Futures transactions may result in losses in excess of the amount invested in the futures contract. There can be no guarantee that there will be a correlation between price movements in the hedging vehicle and in the portfolio securities being hedged. An incorrect correlation could result in a loss on both the hedged securities in the Fund and the hedging vehicle so that the portfolio return might have been greater had hedging not been attempted. There can be no assurance that a liquid market will exist at a time when the Fund seeks to close out a futures contract or a futures option position. Most futures exchanges and boards of trade limit the amount of fluctuation permitted in futures contract prices during a single day; once the daily limit has been reached on a particular contract, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond that limit. In addition, certain of these instruments are relatively new and without a significant trading history. As a result, there is no assurance that an active secondary market will develop or continue to exist. Lack of a liquid market for any reason may prevent the Fund from liquidating an unfavorable position, and the Fund would remain obligated to meet margin requirements until the position is closed.

The Fund may write covered straddles consisting of a call and a put written on the same underlying futures contract. A straddle will be covered when sufficient assets are deposited to meet the Fund's immediate obligations. The Fund may use the same liquid assets to cover both the call and put options where the exercise price of the call and put are the same, or the exercise price of the call is higher than that of the put. In such cases, the Fund will also segregate or "earmark" liquid assets equivalent to the amount, if any, by which the put is "in the money."

The Fund will only enter into futures contracts or futures options which are standardized and traded on a U.S. or foreign exchange or board of trade, or similar entity, or quoted on an automated quotation system, or where quoted prices are generally available in the over-the-counter market. Pursuant to applicable regulatory exemptions, the Fund and Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor are not deemed to be a "commodity pool" or "commodity pool operator" under the Commodity Exchange Act and are not subject to registration or regulation as such under the Commodity Exchange Act.

When a purchase or sale of a futures contract is made by the Fund, the Fund is required to deposit with its custodian (or broker, if legally permitted) a specified amount of liquid assets ("initial margin"). The margin required for a futures contract is set by the exchange on which the contract is traded and may be modified during the term of the contract. The initial margin is in the nature of a performance bond or good faith deposit on the futures contract that is returned to the Fund upon termination of the contract, assuming all contractual obligations have been satisfied. The Fund expects to earn taxable interest income on initial margin deposits. A futures contract held by the Fund is valued daily at the official settlement price of the exchange on which it is traded. Each day the Fund pays or receives cash, called "variation margin," equal to the daily change in value of the futures contract. This process is known as "marking to market." Variation margin does not represent a borrowing or loan by the Fund but is instead a settlement between the Fund and the broker of the amount one would owe the other if the futures contract expired.

The Fund is also required to deposit and maintain margin with respect to put and call options on futures contracts written by it. Such margin deposits will vary depending on the nature of the underlying futures contract (and the related initial margin requirements), the current market value of the option, and other futures positions held by the Fund.

Although some futures contracts call for making or taking delivery of the underlying securities, generally these obligations are closed out prior to delivery by offsetting purchases or sales of matching futures contracts (involving the same exchange, underlying security or index, and delivery month). If an offsetting purchase price is less than the original sale price, the Fund realizes a capital gain, or if it is more, the Fund realizes a capital loss. Conversely, if an offsetting sale price is more than the original purchase price, the Fund realizes a capital gain, or if it is less, the Fund realizes a capital loss. The transaction costs must also be included in these calculations.

With respect to forwards and futures contracts that are not contractually required to "cash-settle," the Fund must cover its open positions by segregating or "earmarking" liquid assets equal to the contracts' full, notional value. With respect to forwards and futures that are contractually required to "cash-settle," however, the Fund is permitted to segregate or "earmark" liquid assets in an amount equal to the Fund's daily marked-to-market (net) obligation (*i.e.*, the Fund's daily net liability, if any) rather than the notional value. By setting aside assets equal to only its net obligation under cash-settled forwards or futures, the Fund will have the ability to employ leverage to a greater extent than if the Fund were required to segregate or "earmark" assets equal to the full notional value of such contracts. Options on futures and forward contracts will be covered in the manner set forth under "Options on Securities, Securities Indexes, Futures Contracts and Swap Indexes."

Because of the low margin deposits required for certain futures, futures trading involves an extremely high degree of leverage. As a result, a relatively small price movement in a futures contract may result in immediate and substantial loss or gain to the investor. For example, if at the time of purchase 10% of the value of the futures contract is deposited as margin, a subsequent 10% decrease in the value of the futures contract would result in a total loss of the margin deposit, before any deduction for the transaction costs, if the account were then closed out. A 15% decrease would result in a loss equal to 150% of the original margin deposit, if the contract were closed out. Thus, a purchase or sale of a futures contract may result in losses in excess of the amount invested in the futures contract. However, the Fund would presumably have sustained comparable losses if, instead of the futures contract, it had invested in the underlying financial instrument and sold it after the decline.

The Fund's ability to reduce or eliminate its futures and related options positions will depend upon the liquidity of the secondary markets for such futures and options. The Fund intends to purchase or sell futures and related options only where there appears to be an active secondary market, but there is no assurance that a liquid secondary market will exist for any particular contract or at any particular time. The prices of futures contracts may be volatile, and the trading of futures contracts is subject to the risk of exchange or clearing house equipment failures, government intervention, insolvency of a brokerage firm or clearing house or other disruption of normal trading activity, which could at times make it difficult or impossible to liquidate existing positions or to recover excess variation margin payments. Use of futures and options on futures for hedging may also involve risks because of imperfect correlations between movements in the prices of the futures or options on futures and movements in the prices of the securities being hedged. Successful use of futures and related options by the Fund for hedging purposes also depends upon the ability of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor to predict correctly movements in the direction of the market, as to which no assurance can be given. The Fund's use of futures and/or options on futures may leave the Fund in a worse position than if such strategies were not used.

The Fund's investments in commodity futures contracts will be subject to additional costs and risks. In particular, the price of a commodity futures contract will reflect the storage cost of purchasing the underlying commodity and will subject the Fund to risks relating to reinvestment and economic and non-economic variables such as drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs, and international economic, political and regulatory developments.

Holding Company Depositary Receipts ("HOLDRs")

HOLDRs are securities that represent ownership in the common stock or ADRs of specified companies in a particular industry. HOLDRs are organized as grantor trusts, and are generally not required to register as investment companies under the 1940 Act. HOLDRs can only be bought and sold in 100-share increments. HOLDRs do not have creation units like ETFs, but investors may exchange 100 shares of a HOLDR for its underlying stocks at any time. Existing HOLDRs focus on narrow industry groups. Each initially owns 20 stocks, but they are unmanaged, and so can become more concentrated due to mergers or the disparate performance of their holdings. HOLDR shareholders are subject to the same risks entailed in direct stock ownership. Because the value of HOLDRs is directly related to the value of the underlying securities, the Fund could lose a substantial part of its original investment in HOLDRs. HOLDRs are subject to market risk; underlying stock risk; sector risk; trading risk; and lack of management risk. Investors in HOLDRs cannot expect to benefit from the involvement of an active portfolio manager who seeks out opportunities and avoids risk in a sector. The underlying stocks in HOLDRs were selected without regard for their value, price performance, volatility or investment merit. The composition of a HOLDR does not change after issue, except in special cases like corporate mergers, acquisitions or other specified "Reconstitution Events." As a result, stocks selected for those HOLDRs with a sector focus may not remain the largest and most liquid in their industry, and may even leave the industry altogether. If this happens, HOLDRs in which the Fund invested may not provide the same targeted exposure to the industry that was initially expected.

Initial Public Offering ("IPO") Holding

IPO holding is the practice of participating in an IPO with the intent of holding the security for investment purposes. Because an IPO is an equity security that is new to the public market, the value of IPOs may fluctuate dramatically. Because of the cyclical nature of the IPO market, from time to time there may not be any IPOs in which a Fund can participate. Even when the Fund requests to participate in an IPO, there is no guarantee that the Fund will receive an allotment of shares in an IPO sufficient to satisfy the Fund's desired participation. Due to the volatility of IPOs, these investments can have a significant impact on performance, which may be positive or negative.

International Sanctions

From time to time, certain of the companies in which the Fund expects to invest may operate in, or have dealings with, countries subject to sanctions or embargoes imposed by the U.S. government and the United Nations and/or countries identified by the U.S. government as state sponsors of terrorism. A company may suffer damage to its reputation if it is identified as a company which operates in, or has dealings with, countries subject to sanctions or embargoes imposed by the U.S. government and the United Nations and/or countries identified by the U.S. government as state sponsors of terrorism. As an investor in such companies, the Fund will be indirectly subject to those risks.

Investment in Foreign and Developing Markets

The Fund may purchase securities of companies domiciled in any foreign country, developed or developing. Potential investors in this Fund should consider carefully the substantial risks involved in securities of companies and governments of foreign social instability, or diplomatic developments which could affect investments in securities of issuers in foreign nations, which are in addition to the usual risks inherent in domestic investments.

There may be less publicly available information about foreign companies comparable to the reports and ratings published about U.S. companies. Most foreign companies are not generally subject to uniform accounting and financial reporting standards, and auditing practices and requirements may not be comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies. The Fund, therefore, may encounter difficulty in obtaining market quotations for purposes of valuing its portfolio and calculating its net asset value. Foreign markets have substantially less volume than the New York Stock Exchange and securities of some foreign companies are less liquid and more volatile than securities of comparable U.S. companies. Commission rates in foreign countries are generally subject to negotiation, as in the U.S., but they are likely to be higher. Transaction costs and custodian expenses are likely to be higher in foreign markets. In many foreign countries there may be less government supervision and regulation of stock exchanges, brokers and listed companies than in the U.S. Furthermore, securities in which the Fund invests may be held in foreign banks and securities depositories, which may be recently organized and subject to limited or no regulatory oversight.

Throughout the last decade many emerging markets have experienced, and continue to experience, high rates of inflation. In certain countries, inflation has accelerated rapidly at times to hyper inflationary levels, creating a negative interest rate environment and sharply eroding the value of outstanding financial assets in those countries.

Investments in businesses domiciled in developing countries may be subject to potentially higher risks than investments in developed countries. These risks include: (i) less social, political, and economic stability; (ii) the small current size of the markets for such securities and the currently low or nonexistent volume of trading, which result in a lack of liquidity and in greater price volatility;

(iii) certain national policies which may restrict the Fund's investment opportunities, including restrictions on investments in issuers or industries deemed sensitive to national interests; (iv) foreign taxation; (v) the absence of developed structures governing private or foreign investment or allowing for judicial redress for injury to private property; (vi) the absence, until recently in certain Eastern European countries, of a capital market structure or market-oriented economy; (vii) the possibility that recent favorable economic developments in Eastern Europe may be slowed or reversed by unanticipated political or social events in such countries; (viii) currency fluctuations; and (ix) the contagious effect of market or economic setbacks in one country on another developing country.

Investments in foreign securities and deposits with foreign banks or foreign branches of U.S. banks may be subject to nationalization, expropriation, confiscatory taxation, adverse changes in investment or exchange control regulations (which may include suspension of the ability to transfer currency from a country), government approval for the repatriation of investment income, capital, or the sale of securities, delays in settlement of transactions, changes in governmental economic or monetary policy in the U.S. or abroad, or other political, diplomatic, and economic developments that could adversely affect the Fund's investments. In the event of nationalization, expropriation, or other confiscation, the Fund could lose its entire investment in a foreign security. The Fund will treat investments that are subject to repatriation restrictions of more than seven days as illiquid securities.

Leverage

The Fund can buy securities with borrowed money (a form of leverage). In addition, certain transactions, such as derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and dollar rolls may also give rise to a form of leverage. Leverage exaggerates the effect on net asset value of any increase or decrease in the market value of the Fund's portfolio securities. These borrowings will be subject to interest costs which may or may not be recovered by appreciation of the securities purchased; in certain cases, interest costs may exceed the return received on the securities purchased. For borrowings for investment purposes, including reverse repurchase agreements (see below), the 1940 Act requires the Fund to maintain continuous asset coverage (that is, total assets including borrowings, less liabilities exclusive of borrowings) of 300% of the amount borrowed. If the required coverage should decline as a result of market fluctuations or other reasons, the Fund may be required to sell some of its portfolio holdings within three days to reduce the amount of its borrowings and restore the 300% asset coverage, even though it may be disadvantageous from an investment standpoint to sell securities at that time. The Fund also may be required to maintain minimum average balances in connection with such borrowing or pay a commitment or other fee to maintain a line of credit; either of these requirements would increase the cost of borrowing over the stated interest rate.

Liquidity Management Practices

The Fund may periodically enter into Letter of Credit or Line of Credit arrangements with banks and other financial intermediaries for the specific purpose of providing liquidity to the Fund. As capital markets are not always liquid or efficiently priced, it may from time to time be necessary for the Fund to borrow money or put securities to banks or other financial intermediaries in order to meet shareholder liquidity demands. The percentage of net assets of which the Fund may enter into a Letter of Credit or Line of Credit arrangement are limited to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act and rules and interpretations thereunder.

In the case of a Letter of Credit arrangement, for a fee paid by the Fund, a bank or other suitable financial intermediary would agree to assume ownership (irrevocably) of securities held in the portfolio for the amortized cost of those securities. In the case of a Line of Credit arrangement, the Fund enters into agreements with banks or other financial intermediaries to supply loan availability to the Fund, where the Fund pledges securities positions within the Fund as collateral.

Loan Participations and Assignments

The Fund may invest in fixed- and floating-rate loans arranged through private negotiations between an issuer of debt instruments and one or more financial institutions ("lenders"). Generally, the Fund's investments in loans are expected to take the form of loan participations and assignments of loans from third parties. Large loans to corporations or governments may be shared or syndicated among several lenders, usually banks. The Fund may participate in such syndicates, or can buy part of a loan. Participations and assignments involve special types of risk, including limited marketability and the risks of being a lender. If the Fund purchases a participation, it may only be able to enforce its rights through the lender, and may assume the credit risk of the lender in addition to that of the borrower. In assignments, the Fund's rights against the borrower may be more limited than those held by the original lender.

In addition, loan investments are subject to a number of other risks, including but not limited to the following: (1) non-payment of interest and/or principal; (2) to the extent a loan is collateralized, a decline in the value of collateral and difficulty or delay in obtaining or selling collateral in the event of the borrower's default or bankruptcy; (3) lack of publicly available information about borrowers; and (4) the highly speculative nature of indebtedness of companies with poor creditworthiness, including the risk that companies will never pay off their indebtedness.

Master Limited Partnerships ("MLPs")

The Fund may invest in MLPs, which are limited partnerships in which ownership units are publicly traded. Generally, an MLP is operated under the supervision of one or more managing general partners. Limited partners (like the Fund when it invests in an MLP)

are not involved in the day-to-day management of the partnership. Investments in MLPs are generally subject to many of the risks that apply to partnerships. For example, holders of the units of MLPs may have limited control and limited voting rights on matters affecting the partnership. There may be fewer corporate protections afforded investors in an MLP than investors in a corporation. Conflicts of interest may exist among unit holders, subordinated unit holders and the general partner of an MLP, including those arising from incentive distribution payments. MLPs that concentrate in a particular industry or region are subject to risks associated with such industry or region. MLPs holding credit-related investments are subject to interest rate risk and the risk of default on payment obligations by debt issuers. Investments held by MLPs may be illiquid. MLP units may trade infrequently and in limited volume, and they may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than securities of larger or more broadly based companies.

Money Market Instruments

The Fund may invest in the following instruments which are commonly referred to as "money market instruments":

- (i) Obligations (including certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances) maturing in 13 months or less of (a) banks organized under the laws of the U.S. or any state thereof (including foreign branches of such banks) or (b) U.S. branches of foreign banks or (c) foreign banks and foreign branches thereof; provided that such banks have, at the time of acquisition by the Fund of such obligations, total assets of not less than \$1 billion or its equivalent. The term "certificates of deposit" includes both Eurodollar certificates of deposit, for which there is generally a market, and Eurodollar time deposits, for which there is generally not a market. "Eurodollars" are dollars deposited in banks outside the U.S.; the Fund may invest in Eurodollar instruments of foreign and domestic banks; and
- (ii) Commercial paper, variable amount demand master notes, bills, notes, and other obligations issued by a U.S. company, a foreign company or a foreign government, its agencies or instrumentalities, maturing in 13 months or less, an denominated in U.S. dollars. If such obligations are guaranteed or supported by a letter of credit issued by a bank, such bank (including a foreign bank) must meet the requirements set forth in paragraph (i) above. If such obligations are guaranteed or insured by an insurance company or other non-bank entity, such insurance company or other non-bank entity must represent a credit of high quality, as determined by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor.

Options on Securities, Securities Indexes, Futures Contracts, Swap Contracts, and Swap Indexes

The Fund may write covered put and call options and/or purchase put and call options on securities, securities indexes, and futures contracts that are traded on U.S. and foreign exchanges and over-the-counter, as well as options on swaps and swap indexes for hedging and/or non-hedging purposes. An option on a security, futures contract or swap contract is a contract that gives the purchaser of the option, in return for the premium paid, the right to buy a specified security, futures contract or swap contract (in the case of a call option) or to sell a specified security, futures contract or swap contract (in the case of a put option) from or to the writer of the option at a designated price during the term of the option. The writer of an option on a security has the obligation upon exercise of the option to deliver the underlying security upon payment of the exercise price or to pay the exercise price upon delivery of the underlying security. Upon exercise, the writer of an option on an index is obligated to pay the difference between the cash value of the index and the exercise price multiplied by the specified multiplier for the index option. An index is designed to reflect specified facets of a particular financial or securities market, a specific group of financial instruments or securities, or certain economic indicators. An option on an index gives the purchaser of the option, in return for the premium paid, the right to receive from the seller cash equal to the difference between the closing price of the index and the exercise price of the option. One purpose of purchasing put options is to protect holdings in an underlying or related security or swap contract against a substantial decline in market value. One purpose of purchasing call options is to protect against substantial increases in prices of securities or swap contracts.

The Fund may write a call or put option only if the option is "covered." A call option on a security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index written by the Fund is "covered" if the Fund owns the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index covered by the call or has an absolute and immediate right to acquire that security without additional cash consideration (or for additional cash consideration held in a segregated or "earmarked" account by its custodian) upon conversion or exchange of other securities held in its portfolio, or otherwise segregates or "earmarks" liquid assets in an amount equal to the value of the underlying instrument on a daily, marked-to-market basis. A call option on a security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index is also covered if the Fund holds a call on the same security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index and in the same principal amount as the call written where the exercise price of the call held (a) is equal to or less than the exercise price of the call written, or (b) is greater than the exercise price of the call written if the difference is maintained by the Fund in cash or high-grade U.S. government securities in a segregated or "earmarked" account with its custodian. A put option on a security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index written by the Fund is "covered" if the Fund maintains liquid assets with a value equal to the exercise price in a segregated or "earmarked" account with its custodian, or else holds a put on the same security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index, and in the same principal amount as the put written where the exercise price of the put held is equal to or greater than the exercise price of the put written.

The Fund may write covered straddles consisting of a combination of a call and a put written on the same underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index. A straddle will be covered when sufficient assets are deposited to meet the Fund's immediate obligations. The Fund may use the same liquid assets to cover both the call and put options where the exercise price of the call and put are the same, or the exercise price of the call is higher than that of the put. In such cases, the Fund will also segregate or "earmark" liquid assets equivalent to the amount, if any, by which the put is "in the money."

The Fund will receive a premium from writing a put or call option, which increases gross income in the event the option expires unexercised or is closed out at a profit. If the value of a security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index on which the Fund has written a call option falls or remains the same, the Fund will realize a profit in the form of the premium received (less transaction costs) that could offset all or a portion of any decline in the value of the portfolio securities being hedged. If the value of the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index rises, however, the Fund will realize a loss in its call option position, which will reduce the benefit of any unrealized appreciation in its investments. By writing a put option, the Fund assumes the risk of a decline in the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index. To the extent that the price changes of the portfolio securities being hedged correlate with changes in the value of the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index, writing covered put options will increase the Fund's losses in the event of a market decline, although such losses will be offset in part by the premium received for writing the option.

The Fund may also purchase put options to hedge its investments against a decline in value. By purchasing a put option, the Fund will seek to offset a decline in value of the portfolio investments being hedged through appreciation of the put option. If the value of the Fund's investments does not decline as anticipated, or if the value of the option does not increase, the Fund's loss will be limited to the premium paid for the option plus related transaction costs. The success of this strategy will depend, in part, on the accuracy of the correlation between the changes in value of the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index, and the changes in value of the Fund's investment holdings being hedged.

The Fund may purchase call options on individual securities or futures or swap contracts to hedge against an increase in the price of securities or futures or swap contracts that it anticipates purchasing in the future. Similarly, the Fund may purchase call options on a securities or swap index to attempt to reduce the risk of missing a broad market advance, or an advance in an industry or market segment, at a time when the Fund holds uninvested cash or short-term debt securities awaiting reinvestment. When purchasing call options, the Fund will bear the risk of losing all or a portion of the premium paid if the value of the underlying security, index, futures contract, swap contract or swap index does not rise.

The Fund may purchase and write covered put and covered call options that are traded on U.S. or foreign securities exchanges or that are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Currency options may be either listed on an exchange or traded over-the-counter. Options on financial futures and stock indices are generally settled in cash as opposed to the underlying securities.

Listed options are third-party contracts (*i.e.*, performance of the obligations of the purchaser and seller is guaranteed by the exchange or clearing corporation) and have standardized strike prices and expiration dates. Over-the-counter options are privately negotiated with the counterparty to such contract and are purchased from and sold to dealers, financial institutions or other counterparties which have entered into direct agreements with the Fund. Over-the-counter options differ from exchange-traded options in that over-the-counter options are transacted with the counterparty directly and not through a clearing corporation (which guarantees performance). If the counterparty fails to take delivery of the securities underlying an option it has written, the Fund would lose the premium paid for the option as well as any anticipated benefit of the transaction. Consequently, the Fund must rely on the credit quality of the counterparty and there can be no assurance that a liquid secondary market will exist for any particular over-the-counter options at any specific time. The Fund will limit the purchase and sale of options to those listed on a national securities exchange and issued by the Options Clearing Corporation.

The purchase and writing of options involves certain risks. During the option period, the covered call writer has, in return for the premium on the option, given up the opportunity to profit from a price increase in the underlying security above the exercise price, but, as long as its obligation as a writer continues, has retained the risk of loss should the price of the underlying security decline. The writer of an option has no control over the time when it may be required to fulfill its obligation as a writer of the option. Once an option writer has received an exercise notice, it cannot effect a closing purchase transaction in order to terminate its obligation under the option and must deliver the underlying security at the exercise price. If a put or call option purchased by the Fund is not sold when it has remaining value, and if the market price of the underlying security remains equal to or greater than the exercise price (in the case of a put), or remains less than or equal to the exercise price (in the case of a call), the Fund will lose its entire investment in the option. Also, where a put or call option on a particular security is purchased to hedge against price movements in a related security, the price of the put or call option may move more or less than the price of the related security.

There can be no assurance that a liquid market will exist when the Fund seeks to close out an option position. Reasons for the absence of a liquid secondary market on an exchange include the following: (i) there may be insufficient trading interest in certain options; (ii) restrictions may be imposed by an exchange on opening transactions or closing transactions or both; (iii) trading halts, suspensions

or other restrictions may be imposed with respect to particular classes or series of options or underlying securities; (iv) unusual or unforeseen circumstances may interrupt normal operations on an exchange; (v) the facilities of an exchange or a clearing corporation may not at all times be adequate to handle current trading volume; (vi) one or more exchanges could, for economic or other reasons, decide or be compelled at some future date to discontinue the trading of options (or a particular class or series of options), in which event the secondary market on that exchange (or in the class or series of options) would cease to exist, although outstanding options on that exchange that had been issued by a clearing corporation as a result of trades on that exchange would continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms. Although the Fund may be able to offset to some extent any adverse effects of being unable to liquidate an option position, it may experience losses in some cases as a result of such inability. The value of over-the-counter options purchased by the Fund, as well as the cover for options written by the Fund, are considered not readily marketable and are subject to the Trust's limitation on investments in securities that are not readily marketable, unless the over-the-counter option written by the Fund is sold to a dealer who agrees that the Fund may repurchase the option at a maximum price determined by a formula in the option agreement. The cover for that option will be considered illiquid only to the extent that the maximum repurchase price under the formula exceeds the intrinsic value of the option.

There are several risks associated with transactions in options on securities, futures or swaps indexes, and even a small investment in securities such as options can have a significant impact on the Fund's exposure to stock market values, interest rates or the currency exchange rate. For example, there are significant differences between the securities, futures or swaps markets, and the options markets that could result in an imperfect correlation between these markets, causing a given transaction not to achieve its objectives. A decision as to whether, when and how to use options involves the exercise of skill and judgment, and even a well-conceived transaction may be unsuccessful to some degree because of market behavior or unexpected events. There can be no assurance that a liquid market will exist when the Fund seeks to close out an option position. If the Fund were unable to close out an option that it had purchased on a securities, futures or swaps index, it would have to exercise the option in order to realize any profit or the option may expire worthless. If trading were suspended in an option purchased by the Fund, it would not be able to close out the option. If restrictions on exercise were imposed, the Fund might be unable to exercise an option it had purchased. Except to the extent that a call option on an index written by the Fund is covered by an option on the same index purchased by the Fund, movements in the index may result in a loss to the Fund; however, such losses may be mitigated by changes in the value of the Fund's securities during the period the option was outstanding. The Fund's use of options may leave the Fund in a worse position than if it had not invested in options.

Participation Notes ("P-Notes")

P-Notes are participation interest notes that are issued by banks or broker-dealers and are designed to offer a return linked to a particular underlying equity, debt, currency or market. The P-Notes in which the Fund may invest will typically have a maturity of one year. When purchasing a P-Note, the posting of margin is not required because the full cost of the P-Note (plus commission) is paid at the time of purchase. When the P-Note matures, the issuer will pay to, or receive from, the purchaser the difference between the minimal value of the underlying instrument at the time of purchase and that instrument's value at maturity. Investments in P-Notes involve the same risks associated with a direct investment in the underlying foreign companies of foreign securities markets that they seek to replicate.

In addition, there can be no assurance that the trading price of P-Notes will equal the underlying value of the foreign companies or foreign securities markets that they seek to replicate. The holder of a participation note that is linked to a particular underlying security is entitled to receive any dividends paid in connection with an underlying security or instrument. However, the holder of a participation note does not receive voting rights as it would if it directly owned the underlying security or instrument. P-Notes are generally traded over-the-counter. P-Notes constitute general unsecured contractual obligations of the banks or broker-dealers that issue them and the counterparty. There is also counterparty risk associated with these investments because the Fund is relying on the creditworthiness of such counterparty and has no rights under a participation note against the issuer of the underlying security. In addition, the Fund will incur transaction costs as a result of investment in P-Notes.

Preferred Stock

The Fund may invest in preferred stock. Preferred stock, unlike common stock, offers a stated dividend rate payable from the issuer's earnings. Preferred stock dividends may be cumulative or non-cumulative, participating, or auction rate. If interest rates rise, the fixed dividend on preferred stocks may be less attractive, causing the price of the preferred stocks to decline. Preferred stock may have mandatory sinking fund provisions, as well as call/redemption provisions prior to maturity, a negative feature when interest rates decline. The Fund may purchase preferred stock of companies which have also issued other classes of preferred stock or debt obligations that may take priority as to payment of dividends over the preferred stock held by the Fund.

Private Investment Funds

The Fund may invest in private investment funds, also known as hedge funds, which will pursue alternative investment strategies. An investment in a private investment fund involves certain risks relating to, among other things, the nature of the investments and

investment techniques to be employed by the private investment fund. Because of the speculative nature of the investments and trading strategies of private investment funds, there is a risk that the Fund may suffer a significant or complete loss of its invested capital in one or more private investment funds. Private investment funds may utilize a variety of special investment instruments and techniques to hedge the portfolios of the funds against various risks (such as changes in interest rates or other factors that affect security values) or for non-hedging purposes to pursue a fund's investment objective. Certain of the special investment instruments and techniques that the fund may use are speculative and involve a high degree of risk, particularly in the context of non-hedging transactions. Interests in a private investment fund are not generally registered under the 1933 Act and the transferability or withdrawal of such interests is substantially restricted.

Privately-Issued Stripped Securities

The Fund may invest in principal portions or coupon portions of U.S. government Securities that have been separated (stripped) by banks, brokerage firms, or other entities. Stripped securities are usually sold separately in the form of receipts or certificates representing undivided interests in the stripped portion and are not considered to be issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government. Stripped securities may be more volatile than nonstripped securities.

Privatizations

The Fund may invest in privatizations. The Fund believes that foreign government programs of selling interests in government-owned or controlled enterprises ("privatizations") may represent opportunities for significant capital appreciation. The ability of U.S. entities, such as the Fund, to participate in privatizations may be limited by local law, or the terms for participation may be less advantageous than for local investors. There can be no assurance that privatization programs will be available or successful.

Quantitative Strategy

A quantitative strategy means that stocks are selected based upon a customized group of proprietary models designed by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. The model attempts to enhance returns, within defined risk parameters, relative to a benchmark by analyzing company income and balance sheet information as well as other relevant market related information. The success of the Fund's principal investment strategies depends on the skill of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor in designing and using its analytical model as a tool for selecting stocks. A flaw in the design of an analytical model may result in the Fund having a lower return than if the Fund was managed using a fundamental or passive investment management strategy.

ReFlow

The Fund may participate in ReFlow, a program designed to provide an alternative liquidity source for mutual funds experiencing redemptions of their shares. In order to pay cash to shareholders who redeem their shares on a given day, a mutual fund typically must hold cash in its portfolio, liquidate portfolio securities, or borrow money, all of which impose certain costs on the fund. ReFlow provides participating mutual funds with another source of cash by standing ready to purchase shares from a fund equal to the amount of the fund's net redemptions on a given day. ReFlow then generally redeems those shares when the fund experiences net sales. In return for this service, the Fund will pay a fee to ReFlow at a rate determined by a daily auction with other participating mutual funds. The costs to the Fund for participating in ReFlow are expected to be influenced by and comparable to the cost of other sources of liquidity, such as the Fund's short-term lending arrangements or the costs of selling portfolio securities to meet redemptions. ReFlow will be prohibited from acquiring more than 3% of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, but in no case will ReFlow's position in the Fund exceed \$15 million.

ReFlow Services, LLC, the entity which facilitates the day-to-day operations of ReFlow, is under common control with Forward Management, the investment advisor to the Fund. In light of this, the Board of Trustees has adopted certain procedures to govern the Fund's participation in ReFlow. Among other things, the procedures require that all decisions with respect to whether to participate in a particular auction or the terms bid in an auction will be made solely by the relevant portfolio management personnel of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. In addition, ReFlow Management may not provide any information to Forward Management or the sub-advisor with respect to the ReFlow auctions that differs in kind from that provided to any other participating funds in ReFlow. The Board will receive quarterly reports regarding the Fund's usage of the program, and shall determine annually whether continued participation in the program is in the best interests of the Fund and its shareholders.

Regulatory and Market Developments

Recent instability in the financial markets has led the U.S. government to take a number of unprecedented actions designed to support certain financial institutions and segments of the financial markets that have experienced extreme volatility, and in some cases a lack of liquidity. Federal, state, and non-U.S. governments, their regulatory agencies, or self regulatory organizations may take actions that affect the regulation of the instruments in which the Fund invests, or the issuers of such instruments, in ways that are unforeseeable.

Legislation or regulation may also change the way in which the Fund itself is regulated. Such legislation or regulation could diminish or preclude the Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective. Governments or their agencies may also acquire distressed assets from financial institutions and acquire ownership interests in those institutions. The implications of government ownership and disposition of these assets are unclear, and such a program may have positive or negative effects on the liquidity, valuation, and performance of the Fund's portfolio holdings.

Repurchase Agreements

Securities held by the Fund may be subject to repurchase agreements. A repurchase agreement is a contract under which the Fund acquires a security for a relatively short time period (usually not more than one week) subject to the obligation of the seller to repurchase and the Fund to resell such security at a fixed time and price which represents the Fund's cost plus interest. The arrangement results in a fixed rate of return that is not subject to market fluctuations during the period that the underlying security is held by the Fund. Repurchase agreements involve certain risks, including seller's default on its obligation to repurchase or seller's bankruptcy. The Fund will enter into such agreements only with commercial banks and registered broker-dealers, as well as other financial institutions which Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor deems creditworthy under guidelines approved by the Board of Trustees. In these transactions, the securities issued by the Fund will have a total value in excess of the value of the repurchase agreement during the term of the agreement. If the seller defaults, the Fund could realize a loss on the sale of the underlying security to the extent that the proceeds of the sale, including accrued interest, are less than the resale price provided in the agreement including interest, and it may incur expenses in selling the security. In addition, if the other party to the agreement becomes insolvent and subject to liquidation or reorganization under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code of 1983 or other laws, a court may determine that the underlying security is collateral for a loan by the Fund not within the control of the Fund and therefore the Fund may not be able to substantiate its interest in the underlying security and may be deemed an unsecured creditor of the other party to the agreement. While the Trust's management acknowledges these risks, it is expected that they can be controlled through careful monitoring procedures.

In a repurchase agreement, the Fund purchases a security and simultaneously commits to sell that security back to the original seller at an agreed-upon price. The resale price reflects the purchase price plus an agreed-upon incremental amount that is unrelated to the coupon rate or maturity of the purchased security. To protect the Fund from risk that the original seller will not fulfill its obligations, the securities are held in accounts of the Fund at a bank, marked-to-market daily, and maintained at a value at least equal to the sale price plus the accrued incremental amount. If a seller defaults on its repurchase obligations, the Fund may suffer a loss in disposing of the security subject to the repurchase agreement. While it does not presently appear possible to eliminate all risks from these transactions (particularly the possibility that the value of the underlying security will be less than the resale price, as well as costs and delays to the Fund in connection with bankruptcy proceedings), it is the current policy of the Fund to engage in repurchase agreement transactions with parties whose creditworthiness has been reviewed and found satisfactory by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Dollar Roll Agreements

The Fund may borrow funds by entering into reverse repurchase agreements and dollar roll agreements in accordance with applicable investment restrictions. In a reverse repurchase agreement, the Fund sells a portfolio instrument to another party, such as a bank or broker-dealer, in return for cash and agrees to repurchase the instrument at a particular price and time. A dollar roll agreement is identical to a reverse repurchase agreement except for the fact that substantially similar securities may be repurchased. While a reverse repurchase agreement is outstanding, the Fund will maintain segregated or "earmarked" liquid assets to cover its obligation under the agreement. The Fund will enter into reverse repurchase agreements only with parties whose creditworthiness has been found satisfactory by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor. Such transactions may increase fluctuations in the market value of the Fund's assets and may be viewed as a form of leverage. Reverse repurchase agreements and dollar roll agreements involve the risk that the market value of the securities sold by the Fund may decline below the price at which the Fund is obligated to repurchase the securities.

Rule 144A Securities

The Fund may purchase securities that are not registered under the 1933 Act, but that can be sold to "qualified institutional buyers" in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act ("Rule 144A Securities"). In addition to an adequate trading market, the Board will also consider factors such as trading activity, availability of reliable price information, and other relevant information in determining whether a Rule 144A Security is liquid. This investment practice could have the effect of increasing the level of illiquidity in the Fund to the extent that qualified institutional buyers become uninterested for a time in purchasing Rule 144A Securities. The Board will carefully monitor any investments by the Fund in Rule 144A Securities.

Rule 144A securities may involve a high degree of business and financial risk and may result in substantial losses. These securities may be less liquid than publicly traded securities, and a Fund may take longer to liquidate these positions than would be the case for publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated transactions, the price realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid by the Fund.

Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the disclosure and other investor protection requirements that would be applicable if their securities were publicly traded.

Rule 144A under the 1933 Act allows for a broader institutional trading market for securities otherwise subject to restriction on resale to the general public by establishing a "safe harbor" from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act for resales of certain securities to qualified institutional buyers (as such term is defined under Rule 144A). Forward Management anticipates that the market for certain restricted securities such as institutional commercial paper will expand further as a result of this regulation and the development of automated systems for the trading, clearance and settlement of unregistered securities of domestic and foreign issuers, such as the PORTAL System sponsored by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. An insufficient number of qualified institutional buyers interested in purchasing Rule 144A eligible restricted securities held by the Fund, however, could affect adversely the marketability of the Fund's securities and, consequently, the Fund might be unable to dispose of such securities promptly or at favorable prices. Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor will monitor the liquidity of such restricted securities under the supervision of the Board.

Securities issued pursuant to Rule 144A are not deemed to be illiquid. Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor will monitor the liquidity of such restricted securities subject to the supervision of the Board. In reaching liquidity decisions, Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor must first find that the security can be sold within seven days at approximately the same amount at which it is valued by the Fund and that there is reasonable assurance that the security will remain marketable throughout the period it is expected to be held by the Fund, taking into account the actual frequency of trades and quotations for the security (expected frequency in the case of initial offerings). Furthermore, the security will be considered liquid if the following criteria are met: (a) at least two dealers make a market in the security; (ii) there are at least three sources from which a price for the security is readily available; and (iii) settlement is made in a "regular way" for the type of security at issue.

Securities Issued by Other Investment Companies

The Fund may invest in securities of other investment companies, including investment companies which may not be registered under the 1940 Act, such as HOLDRs. By investing in another investment company, the Fund is exposed to the risks of the underlying investment company in which it invests in proportion to the amount of assets the Fund allocates to the underlying investment company. In addition, the Fund's investment in other investment companies is limited by the 1940 Act, and will involve the indirect payment of a portion of the expenses, including advisory fees, of such other investment companies.

The Fund's investments in other investment companies may include investments in various ETFs, subject to the Fund's investment objective, policies, and strategies as described in the prospectus. ETFs are discussed above in greater detail.

Generally, the Fund will not purchase securities of another investment company if, as a result: (i) more than 10% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in securities of other investment companies, (ii) such purchase would result in more than 3% of the total outstanding voting securities of any such investment company being held by the Fund, or (iii) more than 5% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in any one such investment company. Many ETFs have obtained exemptive relief from the SEC to permit unaffiliated funds to invest in the ETF's shares beyond the above statutory limitations, subject to certain conditions and pursuant to a contractual arrangement between the particular ETF and the investing fund. The Fund may rely on these exemptive orders to invest in unaffiliated ETFs.

Securities Lending

In order to generate additional income, the Fund from time to time may lend portfolio securities to broker-dealers, banks or institutional borrowers of securities, provided that outstanding loans do not exceed in the aggregate the maximum allowable percentage of the value of the Fund's net assets under applicable laws and regulations, currently 33-1/3%. The Fund may lend securities if such loans are secured continuously by liquid assets consisting of cash, U.S. Government securities or other liquid, high-grade debt securities, or by a letter of credit in favor of the Fund in a separate account maintained by the custodian at least equal at all times to 100% of the market value of the securities loaned, plus accrued interest. This collateral must be valued daily and, should the market value of the loaned securities increase, the borrower must furnish additional collateral to the Fund. During the time portfolio securities are on loan, the borrower pays the Fund any dividends or interest paid on such securities. Loans are subject to termination by the Fund or the borrower at any time. While the Fund does not have the right to vote securities on loan, it intends to terminate the loan and regain the right to vote if that is considered important with respect to the investment. In the event the borrower defaults on its obligation to the Fund, the Fund could experience delays in recovering its securities and possible capital losses. The Fund may pay reasonable finders' and custodial fees in connections with loans. In addition, the Fund will consider all facts and circumstances, including the creditworthiness of the borrowing financial institution, and the Fund will not lend its securities to any director, officer, employee, or affiliate of Forward Management, the Administrator or the Distributor, unless permitted by applicable law.

Short Sales

The Fund may make short sales of securities as part of its overall portfolio management strategies and to offset potential declines in long positions in similar securities. A short sale is a transaction in which the Fund sells a security it does not own in anticipation that the market price of that security will decline.

When the Fund makes a short sale (other than a short sale "against the box," as discussed below), it must borrow the security sold short and deliver it to the broker-dealer through which it made the short sale as collateral for its obligation to deliver the security upon conclusion of the sale. The Fund may have to pay a fee to borrow particular securities and is often obligated to pay over any accrued interest and dividends on such borrowed securities.

If the price of the security sold short increases between the time of the short sale and the time the Fund replaces the borrowed security, the Fund will incur a loss; conversely, if the price declines, the Fund will realize a capital gain. Any gain will be decreased, and any loss increased, by the transaction costs described above. The successful use of short selling may be adversely affected by imperfect correlation between movements in the price of the security sold short and the securities being hedged.

To the extent that the Fund engages in short sales, it will provide collateral to the broker-dealer and (except in the case of short sales "against the box") will maintain additional asset coverage in the form of segregated assets determined to be liquid by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor in accordance with procedures established by the Board of Trustees.

The Fund may engage in short selling to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act and rules and interpretations thereunder.

Short Sales Against the Box

The Fund may enter into a short sale of a security such that, so long as the short position is open, the Fund will own an equal amount of preferred stock or debt securities, convertible or exchangeable without payment of further consideration, into an equal number of shares of the common stock sold short. This kind of short sale, which is described as one "against the box," will be entered into by the Fund for the purpose of receiving a portion of the interest earned by the executing broker from the proceeds of the sale. The proceeds of the sale will be held by the broker until the settlement date, when the Fund delivers the convertible securities to close out its short position. Although, prior to delivery, the Fund will have to pay an amount equal to any dividends paid on the common stock sold short, the Fund will receive the dividends from the preferred stock or interest from the debt securities convertible into the stock sold short, plus a portion of the interest earned from the proceeds of the short sale. The Fund will deposit, in a segregated account with its custodian, convertible preferred stocks or convertible debt securities in connection with short sales against the box.

Sovereign Debt Securities

Sovereign debt securities are issued by governments of foreign countries. The sovereign debt in which the Fund may invest may be rated below investment grade. These securities usually offer higher yields than higher rated securities but are also subject to greater risk than higher rated securities. Brady Bonds represent a type of sovereign debt. These obligations were created under a debt restructuring plan introduced by former U.S. Secretary of the Treasury, Nicholas F. Brady, in which foreign entities issued these obligations in exchange for their existing commercial bank loans. Brady Bonds have been issued by Argentina, Brazil, Bulgaria, Costa Rica, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Mexico, Morocco, Nigeria, Philippines, Poland, and Uruguay, and may be issued by other emerging countries.

Structured Notes

The Fund may invest in structured notes, which are debt obligations that also contain an embedded derivative component with characteristics that adjust the obligation's risk/return profile. Generally, the performance of a structured note will track that of the underlying debt obligation and the derivative embedded within it. The Fund has the right to receive periodic interest payments from the issuer of the structured notes at an agreed-upon interest rate and a return of the principal at the maturity date.

Structured notes are typically privately negotiated transactions between two or more parties. The Fund bears the risk that the issuer of the structured note will default or become bankrupt. The Fund bears the risk of the loss of its principal investment and periodic interest payments expected to be received for the duration of its investment in the structured notes.

In the case of structured notes on credit default swaps, the Fund is also subject to the credit risk of the corporate credits underlying the credit default swaps. If one of the underlying corporate credits defaults, the Fund may receive the security that has defaulted, or alternatively a cash settlement may occur, and the Fund's principal investment in the structured note would be reduced by the corresponding face value of the defaulted security.

The Fund may invest in equity-linked structured notes (which would be linked to an equity index) to a significant extent. A highly liquid secondary market may not exist for the structured notes the Fund invests in, and there can be no assurance that a highly liquid secondary market will develop. The lack of a highly liquid secondary market may make it difficult for the Fund to sell the structured notes it holds at an acceptable price or accurately value such notes.

The market for structured notes may be, or suddenly can become, illiquid. The other parties to the transaction may be the only investors with sufficient understanding of the derivative to be interested in bidding for it. Changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid, and unpredictable changes in the prices for structured notes. In certain cases, a market price for a credit-linked security may not be available. The collateral for a structured note may be one or more credit default swaps, which are subject to additional risks.

Swap Agreements

The Fund may enter into interest rate, index, equity, currency exchange rate, total return and credit default swap agreements as well as purchase and sell options to enter into such swap agreements, for hedging and non-hedging purposes. These transactions would be entered into in an attempt to obtain a particular return when it is considered desirable to do so, possibly at a lower cost to the Fund than if the Fund had invested directly in the asset that yielded the desired return. Swap agreements are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than one year. In a standard swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are generally calculated with respect to a "notional amount," *i.e.*, the return on or increase in value of a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index.

Forms of swap agreements include interest rate caps, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates exceed a specified rate, or "cap"; interest rate floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a specified level, or "floor"; and interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and purchases a floor or vice versa, in an attempt to protect itself against interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels. Credit default swaps are a type of swap agreement in which the protection "buyer" is generally obligated to pay the protection "seller" an upfront and/or a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract provided that no credit event, such as a default, on a reference obligation has occurred. The credit default swap agreement may have as reference obligations one or more securities that are not currently held by the Fund. If a credit event occurs, the seller generally must pay the buyer the "par value" (full notional value) of the swap in exchange for an equal face amount of deliverable obligations of the reference entity described in the swap, or the seller may be required to deliver the related net cash amount, if the swap is cash settled. The Fund may be either the buyer or seller in the transaction. If the Fund is a buyer and no credit event occurs, the Fund may recover nothing if the swap is held through its termination date. However, if a credit event occurs, the buyer generally may elect to receive the full notional value of the swap in exchange for an equal face amount of deliverable obligations of the reference entity whose value may have significantly decreased. As a seller, the Fund generally receives an upfront payment and/or a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the swap provided that there is no credit event. As the seller, the Fund would effectively add leverage to its portfolio because, in addition to its total net assets, the Fund would be subject to investment exposure on the notional amount of the swap. Credit default swap agreements involve greater risks than if the Fund had invested in the reference obligation directly since, in addition to general market risks, credit default swaps are subject to illiquidity risk, counterparty risk and credit risk. The Fund will enter into credit default swap agreements only with counterparties that meet certain standards of creditworthiness.

The Fund may enter into total return swap agreements. Total return swap agreements are contracts in which one party agrees to make periodic payments based on the change in market value of underlying assets, which may include a specified security, basket of securities, defined portfolios of bonds, loans and mortgages, or securities indexes during the specified period, in return for periodic payments based on a fixed or variable interest rate or the total return from other underlying assets. Total return swap agreements may be used to obtain exposure to a security or market without owning or taking physical custody of such security or market. Total return swap agreements may effectively add leverage to the Fund's portfolio because, in addition to its total net assets, the Fund would be subject to investment exposure on the notional amount of the swap. Total return swaps are a mechanism for the user to accept the economic benefits of asset ownership without utilizing the balance sheet. The other leg of the swap, usually the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), is spread to reflect the non-balance sheet nature of the product. Total return swaps can be designed with any underlying asset agreed between two parties. Typically no notional amounts are exchanged with total return swaps. Total return swap agreements entail the risk that a party will default on its payment obligations to the Fund thereunder. Swap agreements also entail the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its obligation to the counterparty. Generally, the Fund will enter into total return swaps on a net basis (*i.e.*, the two payment streams are netted out with the Fund receiving or paying, as the case may be, only the net amount of the two payments).

Most swap agreements entered into by the Fund calculate the obligations of the parties to the agreement on a "net basis." Consequently, the Fund's current obligations (or rights) under a swap agreement will generally be equal only to the net present value of amounts to be paid or received under the agreement based on the relative values of the positions held by each party to the agreement

(the "net amount"). The Fund's current obligations under a swap agreement will be accrued daily (offset against amounts owed to the Fund), and any accrued but unpaid net amounts owed to a swap counterparty will be covered by the maintenance of a segregated or "earmarked" account consisting of assets determined to be liquid by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor in accordance with procedures established by the Board of Trustees, to limit any potential leveraging of the Fund's portfolio.

Obligations under swap agreements so covered will not be construed to be "senior securities" for purposes of the Fund's investment restriction concerning senior securities.

Whether the Fund's use of swap agreements will be successful in furthering its investment objective will depend on the ability of Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor to correctly predict whether certain types of investments are likely to produce greater returns than other investments. Because they are two-party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven days, swap agreements may be considered to be illiquid investments. Moreover, the Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement in the event of the default or bankruptcy of a swap agreement counterparty. The Fund will enter into swap agreements only with counterparties that meet certain standards for creditworthiness (generally, such counterparties would have to be eligible counterparties under the terms of the Fund's repurchase agreement guidelines). Certain restrictions imposed on the Fund by the Internal Revenue Code may limit the Fund's ability to use swap agreements. The swap market is a relatively new market and is largely unregulated. It is possible that developments in the swap market, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect the Fund's ability to terminate existing swap agreements or to realize amounts to be received under such agreements. In addition, the Fund's use of swaps may reduce the Fund's returns and increase volatility.

U.S. Government Obligations

Obligations of certain agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. government, such as GNMA, are supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury; others, such as those of FNMA, are supported by the right of the issuer to borrow from the Treasury; others, such as those of the Student Loan Marketing Association, are supported by the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase the agency's obligations; still others, such as those of the Federal Farm Credit Banks or FHLMC, are supported only by the credit of the instrumentality. No assurance can be given that the U.S. government would provide financial support to U.S. government-sponsored agencies or instrumentalities if it is not obligated to do so by law.

Regarding certain federal agency securities or government-sponsored entity securities (such as debt securities or mortgage-backed securities issued by FHLMC, FNMA, Federal Home Loan Banks, and other government-sponsored entities), you should be aware that although the issuer may be chartered or sponsored by Acts of Congress, the issuer is not funded by Congressional appropriations, and its securities are neither guaranteed nor issued by the U.S. Treasury.

On September 6, 2008, the Federal Housing Finance Agency ("FHFA") placed FNMA and FHLMC into conservatorship. As the conservator, FHFA succeeded to all rights, titles, powers and privileges of FNMA and FHLMC and of any stockholder, officer or director of FNMA and FHLMC with respect to FNMA and FHLMC and the assets of FNMA and FHLMC. FHFA selected a new chief executive officer and chairman of the board of directors for each of FNMA and FHLMC.

On September 7, 2008, the U.S. Treasury announced three additional steps taken by it in connection with the conservatorship. First, the U.S. Treasury entered into a Senior Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with each of FNMA and FHLMC pursuant to which the U.S. Treasury will purchase up to an aggregate of \$100 billion of each of FNMA and FHLMC to maintain a positive net worth in each enterprise. This agreement contains various covenants that severely limit each enterprise's operations. In exchange for entering into these agreements, the U.S. Treasury received \$1 billion of each enterprise's senior preferred stock and warrants to purchase 79.9% of each enterprise's common stock. Second, the U.S. Treasury announced the creation of a new secured lending facility which is available to each of FNMA and FHLMC as a liquidity backstop. Third, the U.S. Treasury announced the creation of a temporary program to purchase mortgage-backed securities issued by each of FNMA and FHLMC. Both the liquidity backstop and the mortgage-backed securities purchase program were scheduled to expire in December 2009.

FNMA and FHLMC are continuing to operate as going concerns while in conservatorship and each remain liable for all of its obligations, including its guaranty obligations, associated with its mortgage-backed securities. The liquidity backstop and the Senior Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement were both intended to enhance each of FNMA's and FHLMC's ability to meet its obligations.

Under the Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Reform Act of 2008 (the "Reform Act"), which was included as part of the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008, FHFA, as conservator or receiver, has the power to repudiate any contract entered into by FNMA or FHLMC prior to FHFA's appointment as conservator or receiver, as applicable, if FHFA determines, in its sole discretion, that performance of the contract is burdensome and that repudiation of the contract promotes the orderly administration of FNMA's or FHLMC's affairs. The Reform Act requires FHFA to exercise its right to repudiate any contract within a reasonable period of time after its appointment as conservator or receiver.

FHFA, in its capacity as conservator, has indicated that it has no intention to repudiate the guaranty obligations of FNMA or FHLMC because FHFA views repudiation as incompatible with the goals of the conservatorship. However, in the event that FHFA, as conservator or if it is later appointed as receiver for FNMA or FHLMC, were to repudiate any such guaranty obligation, the conservatorship or receivership estate, as applicable, would be liable for actual direct compensatory damages in accordance with the provisions of the Reform Act. Any such liability could be satisfied only to the extent of FNMA's or FHLMC's assets available therefor.

In the event of repudiation, the payments of interest to holders of FNMA or FHLMC mortgage-backed securities would be reduced if payments on the mortgage loans represented in the mortgage loan groups related to such mortgage-backed securities are not made by the borrowers or advanced by the servicer. Any actual direct compensatory damages for repudiating these guaranty obligations may not be sufficient to offset any shortfalls experienced by such mortgage-backed security holders.

Further, in its capacity as conservator or receiver, FHFA has the right to transfer or sell any asset or liability of FNMA or FHLMC without any approval, assignment or consent. Although FHFA has stated that it has no present intention to do so, if FHFA, as conservator or receiver, were to transfer any such guaranty obligation to another party, holders of FNMA or FHLMC mortgage-backed securities would have to rely on that party for satisfaction of the guaranty obligation and would be exposed to the credit risk of that party.

In addition, certain rights provided to holders of mortgage-backed securities issued by FNMA and FHLMC under the operative documents related to such securities may not be enforced against FHFA, or enforcement of such rights may be delayed, during the conservatorship or any future receivership. The operative documents for FNMA and FHLMC mortgage-backed securities may provide (or with respect to securities issued prior to the date of the appointment of the conservator may have provided) that upon the occurrence of an event of default on the part of FNMA or FHLMC, in its capacity as guarantor, which includes the appointment of a conservator or receiver, holders of such mortgage-backed securities have the right to replace FNMA or FHLMC as trustee if the requisite percentage of mortgage-backed securities holders consent. The Reform Act prevents mortgage-backed security holders from enforcing such rights if the event of default arises solely because a conservator or receiver has been appointed. The Reform Act also provides that no person may exercise any right or power to terminate, accelerate or declare an event of default under certain contracts to which FNMA or FHLMC is a party, or obtain possession of or exercise control over any property of FNMA or FHLMC, or affect any contractual rights of FNMA or FHLMC, without the approval of FHFA, as conservator or receiver, for a period of 45 or 90 days following the appointment of FHFA as conservator or receiver, respectively.

Variable and Floating Rate Securities

Variable and floating rate securities are instruments that have a coupon or interest rate that is adjusted periodically due to changes in a base or benchmark rate. Variable and floating rate securities provide for a periodic adjustment in the interest rate paid on the obligations. The terms of such obligations must provide that interest rates are adjusted periodically based upon an interest rate adjustment index as provided in the respective obligations. The adjustment intervals may be regular, and range from daily to annually, or may be event-based, such as based on a change in the prime rate.

The Fund may engage in credit spread trades and invest in floating rate debt instruments ("floaters"). A credit spread trade is an investment position relating to a difference in the prices or interest rates of two securities or currencies, where the value of the investment position is determined by movements in the difference between the prices or interest rates, as the case may be, of the respective securities or currencies. The interest rate on a floater is a variable rate that is tied to another interest rate, such as a money-market index or Treasury bill rate. The interest rate on a floater resets periodically, typically every six months. Because of the interest rate reset feature, floaters provide the Fund with a certain degree of protection against a rise in interest rates, although the Fund will participate in any declines in interest rates as well.

The Fund also may invest in inverse floating rate debt instruments ("inverse floaters"). The interest rate on an inverse floater resets in the opposite direction from the market rate of interest to which the inverse floater is indexed. An inverse floating rate security may exhibit greater price volatility than a fixed rate obligation of similar credit quality, and the Fund accordingly may be forced to hold such an instrument for long periods of time and/or may experience losses of principal in such investment. In particular, when interest rates are declining, coupon payments will rise at periodic intervals. This rise in coupon payments causes rapid dramatic increases in prices compared to those expected from conventional fixed-income instruments of similar maturity. Conversely, during times of rising interest rates, the coupon payments will fall at periodic intervals. This fall in coupon payments causes rapid dramatic decreases in prices compared to those expected from conventional fixed-income instruments of similar maturity. See "Mortgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Securities" for a discussion of IOs and POs.

If the Fund invests in inverse floaters, it will generally treat inverse floaters as illiquid securities except for (i) inverse floaters issued by U.S. government agencies and instrumentalities backed by fixed-rate mortgages, whose liquidity is monitored by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor subject to the supervision of the Board of Trustees or (ii) where such securities can be disposed of promptly in the ordinary course of business at a value reasonably close to that used in the calculation of net asset value per share.

Variable and floating rate notes are frequently not rated by credit rating agencies; however, unrated variable and floating rate notes purchased by the Fund will be determined by Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor under guidelines approved by the Board of Trustees to be of comparable quality at the time of purchase to rated instruments eligible for purchase under the Fund's investment policies. In making such determinations, Forward Management and/or the Fund's sub-advisor will consider the earning power, cash flow, and other liquidity ratios of the issuers of such notes (such issuers include financial, merchandising, bank holding, and other companies) and will continuously monitor their financial condition. Although there may be no active secondary market with respect to a particular variable or floating rate note purchased by the Fund, the Fund may resell the note at any time to a third party. The absence of an active secondary market, however, could make it difficult for the Fund to dispose of a variable or floating rate note in the event the issuer of the note defaulted on its payment obligations and the Fund could, as a result or for other reasons, suffer a loss to the extent of the default. Variable or floating rate notes may be secured by bank letters of credit.

Warrants

The Fund may invest in warrants. The Fund may purchase warrants issued by domestic and foreign companies to purchase newly created equity securities consisting of common and preferred stock. Warrants are securities that give the holder the right, but not the obligation to purchase equity issues of the company issuing the warrants, or a related company, at a fixed price either on a date certain or during a set period. The equity security underlying a warrant is authorized at the time the warrant is issued or is issued together with the warrant.

Investing in warrants can provide a greater potential for profit or loss than an equivalent investment in the underlying security, and, thus, can be a speculative investment. At the time of issue, the cost of a warrant is substantially less than the cost of the underlying security itself, and price movements in the underlying security are generally magnified in the price movements of the warrant. This leveraging effect enables the investor to gain exposure to the underlying security with a relatively low capital investment.

This leveraging increases an investor's risk, however, in the event of a decline in the value of the underlying security and can result in a complete loss of the amount invested in the warrant. In addition, the price of a warrant tends to be more volatile than, and may not correlate exactly to, the price of the underlying security. If the market price of the underlying security is below the exercise price of the warrant on its expiration date, the warrant will generally expire without value. The value of a warrant may decline because of a decline in the value of the underlying security, the passage of time, changes in interest rates or in the dividend or other policies of the company whose equity underlies the warrant or a change in the perception as to the future price of the underlying security, or any combination thereof. Warrants generally pay no dividends and confer no voting or other rights other than to purchase the underlying security.

When-Issued Securities and Firm Commitment Agreements

The Fund may purchase securities on a delayed delivery or "when-issued" basis and enter into firm commitment agreements (transactions whereby the payment obligation and interest rate are fixed at the time of the transaction but the settlement is delayed). The Fund will not purchase securities the value of which is greater than 15% of its net assets on a when-issued or firm commitment basis. The Fund, as purchaser, assumes the risk of any decline in value of the security beginning on the date of the agreement or purchase, and no interest accrues to the Fund until it accepts delivery of the security. The Fund will not use such transactions for leveraging purposes and, accordingly, will segregate or "earmark" cash, cash equivalents, or liquid securities in an amount sufficient to meet its payment obligations thereunder. Although these transactions will not be entered into for leveraging purposes, to the extent the Fund's aggregate commitments under these transactions exceed its holdings of cash and securities that do not fluctuate in value (such as short-term money market instruments), the Fund temporarily will be in a leveraged position (i.e., it will have an amount greater than its net assets subject to market risk). Should market values of the Fund's portfolio securities decline while the Fund is in a leveraged position, greater depreciation of its net assets would likely occur than were it not in such a position. As the Fund's aggregate commitments under these transactions increase, the opportunity for leverage similarly increases. The Fund will not borrow money to settle these transactions and, therefore, will liquidate other portfolio securities in advance of settlement if necessary to generate additional cash to meet its obligations thereunder.

Zero-Coupon Securities

The Fund may invest in zero-coupon securities. A zero-coupon security has no cash coupon payments. Instead, the issuer sells the security at a substantial discount from its maturity value. The interest equivalent received by the investor from holding this security to maturity is the difference between the maturity value and the purchase price. Zero-coupon securities are more volatile than cash pay securities. The Fund accrues income on these securities prior to the receipt of cash payments. The Fund intends to distribute substantially all of its income to its shareholders to qualify for pass-through treatment under the tax laws and may, therefore, need to use its cash reserves to satisfy distribution requirements.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS

The Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor are authorized to select the brokers or dealers that will execute transactions to purchase or sell investment securities for the Fund. In all purchases and sales of securities for the Fund, the primary consideration is to obtain the most favorable price and execution available. Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement and/or Sub-Advisory Agreement, each Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor determines which brokers are eligible to execute portfolio transactions for the Fund. Purchases and sales of securities in the over-the-counter market will generally be executed directly with a "market-maker," unless in the opinion of the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor, a better price and execution can otherwise be obtained by using a broker for the transaction.

In placing portfolio transactions, the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor will use its best efforts to choose a broker capable of providing the brokerage services necessary to obtain the most favorable combination of price and execution available. The full range and quality of brokerage services available will be considered in making these determinations, such as the size of the order, the difficulty of execution, the operational facilities of the firm involved, the firm's risk in positioning a block of securities and other factors such as the firm's ability to engage in transactions in shares of banks and thrifts that are not listed on an organized stock exchange. Consideration may also be given to those brokers that supply research and statistical information to the Investment Advisor and/or Sub-Advisor, and provide other services in addition to execution services. The Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor are prohibited from considering a broker's or dealer's promotion or sale of Fund shares, or shares of any other registered investment company, when selecting brokers and dealers to effect a Fund's portfolio securities transactions. The placement of portfolio brokerage with broker-dealers who have sold shares of the Fund is subject to rules adopted by FINRA and the Forward Funds' Policies and Procedures Prohibiting the Use of Brokerage Commissions to Finance Distribution.

While it will be the Trust's general policy to seek to obtain the most favorable combination of price and execution available, in selecting a broker to execute portfolio transactions for the Fund, the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor may also give weight to the ability of a broker to furnish brokerage and research services to the Investment Advisor or the Sub-Advisor. In negotiating commissions with a broker, the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor may therefore pay a higher commission than would otherwise be the case if no weight were given to the furnishing of these supplemental services, provided that the amount of such commission has been determined in good faith by the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor to be reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and research services provided by such broker, which services either produce a direct benefit to the Fund or assist the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor in carrying out its responsibilities to the Fund or its other clients. These services may include such matters as general economic and security market reviews, industry and company reviews, evaluations of securities and recommendations as to the purchase and sale of securities.

Purchases of the Fund's portfolio securities also may be made directly from issuers or from underwriters. Where possible, purchase and sale transactions will be effected through dealers that specialize in the types of securities that the Fund will be holding, unless better executions are available elsewhere. Dealers and underwriters usually act as principals for their own account. Most debt securities are purchased and sold on a principal basis with the issuer, the issuer's underwriter, or with a primary market-maker acting as a principal, with no brokerage commission being paid by the Fund. However, purchases from underwriters will include a concession paid by the issuer to the underwriter and purchases from dealers will include the spread between the bid and the asked price. If the execution and price offered by more than one dealer or underwriter are comparable, the order may be allocated to a dealer or underwriter which has provided such research or other services as mentioned above.

Some securities considered for investment by the Fund may also be appropriate for other clients served by the Fund's Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor. If the purchase or sale of securities consistent with the investment policies of the Fund and one or more of these other clients serviced by the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor is considered at or about the same time, transactions in such securities will be allocated among the Fund and the Investment Advisor's or Sub-Advisor's other clients in a manner deemed fair and reasonable by the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor. There is no specified formula for allocating such transactions. From time to time it may be in the best interest of the Fund (for example to reduce transactions costs or assure availability of securities) to either purchase or sell securities with other clients of the Fund's Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor. In the case of such "cross" transactions, the Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor is required to follow procedures adopted by the Fund designed to ensure the transactions is fair to the Fund. The Investment Advisor or Sub-Advisor may utilize the services of affiliated broker-dealers to execute portfolio transactions for the Fund on an agency basis and may be paid brokerage commissions from the Fund for such services in accordance with rules adopted by the SEC.

ADDITIONAL PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION INFORMATION

Other Purchase Information

For the Class A shares, the underwriter's commission (paid to the Distributor) is the sales charge shown in the Prospectus, less any applicable dealer concession. The dealer concession is paid to those firms selling shares as a member of the Funds' broker-dealer

network. The dealer concession is the same for all dealers. The Distributor may from time to time allow broker-dealers selling shares of the Fund to retain 100% of the sales charge. In such cases, the broker-dealer may be deemed an "underwriter" under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The Investment Advisor, at its expense, may provide additional promotional incentives to financial intermediaries in connection with sales of the Fund. In some instances, such incentives may be made available only to financial intermediaries whose representatives have sold or are expected to sell significant amounts of such shares. Financial intermediaries may not use sales of the shares to qualify for the incentives to the extent such may be prohibited by the laws of any state in the United States.

Reduced Sales Charges for Class A Shares

Class A shares of the Fund may be purchased at a reduced sales charge as described below.

- 1. **Reach "Break Points"**: Increase the initial Class A investment amount to reach a higher discount level, as described in the Prospectus.
- 2. **Right of Accumulation:** An investor's purchase of additional Class A shares may qualify for a cumulative quantity discount by combining a current purchase with certain other Class A shares already owned to calculate the sales charge break point for the investor's next purchase ("Right of Accumulation"). The applicable shares charge is based on the total of:
 - (i) The higher of the investor's initial purchase (less redemptions) or the net asset value (valued at the close of business on the previous day) of (a) all Class A shares of the Fund held by the investor, and (b) all Class A shares of any other of the Forward series of the Funds which may be introduced and held by the investor; and
 - (ii) The net asset value of all Class A shares owned by another shareholder eligible to combine their purchase with that of the investor into a single "purchase" (See "Combined Purchase Privilege" below).
- 3. **Sign a Letter of Intent**: Investors may purchase Class A shares of the Fund at a reduced sales charge by means of a written Letter of Intent, which expresses the investor's intention to invest a minimum of \$25,000 of Class A shares of any Forward Fund within a period of 13 months. Upon the Fund's receipt of the signed Letter, the shareholder will receive a discount equal to the dollar level specified in the Letter. If, however, the purchase level specified by the shareholder's Letter has not been reached at the conclusion of the 13-month period, each purchase will be deemed made at the sales charge appropriate for the actual purchase amount.

Each purchase of shares under a Letter of Intent will be made at the public offering price applicable at the time of such purchase to a single transaction of the dollar amount indicated in such Letter of Intent. At the investor's option, a Letter of Intent may include purchases of shares made not more than ninety days prior to the date the investor signed the Letter of Intent; however, the 13-month period during which the Letter of Intent is in effect will then begin on the date of the earliest purchase to be included. Investors do not receive credit for shares purchased by the reinvestment of distributions or capital gains, future appreciation of investment, or investments in the Forward U.S. Government Money Fund. Investors qualifying for the Combined Purchase Privilege (see below) may purchase shares under a single Letter of Intent. The Letter of Intent is not a binding obligation upon the investor to purchase the full amount indicated. The minimum initial investment under a Letter of Intent is 20% of such stated amount. Shares purchased with the first 5% of such amount will be held in escrow (while remaining registered in the name of the investor) to secure payment of the higher sales charge applicable to the shares actually purchased. If the full amount indicated is not purchased, the escrow account will be involuntarily redeemed to pay the additional sales charge, if necessary. Dividends and distributions on shares held in escrow, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional Fund shares, are not subject to escrow. The escrow will be released when the full amount indicated has been purchased.

Upon reaching the minimum investment amount indicated in your Letter of Intent, the Letter of Intent is satisfied. A second Letter of Intent must be signed to receive any additional reduction in sales charges not covered by a right of accumulation. During the period covered by the second Letter of Intent, upon completion of the total minimum investment specified under the Letter of Intent, an adjustment to reflect any reduced sales load applicable to shares purchased during the 90-day period prior to submission of the second Letter of Intent will be made in the form of additional shares credited to your account at the then current offering price applicable to a single purchase of the dollar amount of the total purchases. The dealer will be liable for the amount of any such adjustment.

Investors making initial purchases who wish to enter into a Letter of Intent may complete the appropriate section of the Subscription Application Form. Current shareholders may call the Funds at (800) 999-6809 to receive the appropriate form.

- 4. **Combined Purchase Privilege:** Investors may combine the following investor accounts into one "purchase" or "holding" to qualify for a reduced sales charge:
 - (i) An individual or "company," as defined in Section 2(a)(8) of the 1940 Act (which includes corporations which are corporate affiliates of each other, but does not include those companies in existence less than six months or which have no purpose other than the purchase of shares of the Fund or other registered investment companies at a discount);

- (ii) An individual, his or her spouse and children under age 21, purchasing for his, her or their own account;
- (iii) A single purchase by a trustee or other fiduciary purchasing shares for a single trust, estate or single fiduciary account although more than one beneficiary is involved; or
- (iv) A single purchase for the employee benefit plans of a single employer.

To qualify for the Combined Purchase Privilege or obtain the Right of Accumulation on a purchase through a broker-dealer, when each such purchase is made the investor or dealer must provide the Distributor with sufficient information to verify that the purchase qualifies for the privilege or discount, such as account numbers or tax identification numbers for Forward Funds accounts eligible for aggregation. The investor must identify and provide information to Forward Funds or the investor's financial intermediary, as applicable, regarding shares of Forward Funds held in all of the investor's accounts (e.g., IRA, nonretirement, 529 plan, etc.) and the accounts of immediate family members (including siblings and parents-in-law) at Forward Funds or any other financial intermediary. Stated differently, the investor must identify to his or her registered representative the complete universe of eligible shareholder accounts in order to receive the maximum break point discount possible.

Exchange Privileges

As discussed in the Fund's prospectus, before you decide to exchange shares, you should read the prospectus information about the Fund involved in your exchange. Exchanges generally are taxable events and may result in a taxable gain (both short and long term) or loss for Federal and state income tax purposes.

You can send a written instruction specifying your exchange or, if you have authorized telephone exchanges previously and we have a record of your authorization, you can call (800) 999-6809 to execute your exchange. See "Telephone Redemptions and Exchanges" below for additional information about telephone exchanges. There are generally no fees for exchanges.

Under certain circumstances, before an exchange can be made, additional documents may be required to verify the authority or legal capacity of the person seeking the exchange. In order to make an exchange into a new class of shares, the exchange must satisfy the minimum initial investment requirement for that class of shares. Once your exchange is received in good order, it cannot be revoked by you. This exchange privilege is available only in States where shares of the Fund being exchanged into may legally be sold.

The Trust reserves the right to prohibit exchanges during the first 15 days following an investment in the Fund. The Trust may terminate or change the terms of the exchange privilege at any time. In addition, Forward Funds may suspend a shareholder's exchange privilege if, in the judgment of Forward Management, the shareholders exchange activity indicates frequent trading or market timing that may be harmful to a Fund or its shareholders. See "Policies Concerning Frequent Purchases and Redemptions" in the relevant prospectus.

If you exchange your Class A shares for Institutional Class, Investor Class or Class M shares, the exchanged shares, because they are no longer Class A shares, cease to count for purposes of any Letters of Intent or Rights of Accumulation.

Shares of other classes of Funds purchased by exchange will be purchased on the basis of relative net asset value per share as follows: (a) exchanges for shares of Funds offered without a sales load will be made without a sales load in shares of other Funds offered without a sales load; (b) shares of Funds purchased without a sales load may be exchanged for shares of other Funds sold with a sales load, and the applicable sales load will be deducted; (c) shares of Funds purchased with a sales load may be exchanged without a sales load for shares of other Funds sold without a sales load; (d) shares of Funds purchased with a sales load, shares of Funds acquired by a previous exchange from shares purchased with a sales load, and additional shares acquired through re-investment of dividends or distributions of any such Funds, may be exchanged without a sales load for shares of other Funds sold with an equivalent or lesser sales load than that previously paid; (e) where the sales load of the shares you exchange for is greater than the sales load you previously paid under the situations described in item (d) above, you pay the difference in sales load; (f) shares of Funds subject to a CDSC exchanged for shares of another Fund also subject to a CDSC will be subject to the higher applicable CDSC of the two Funds and, for purposes of calculating CDSC rates, will be deemed to have been held since the date the shares being exchanged were initially purchased; and (g) shares of Funds subject to a CDSC exchanged for shares of another Fund not subject to a CDSC will be charged the CDSC. To accomplish an exchange under items (d) and (e) above, you or your financial intermediary must notify the Transfer Agent of your prior ownership of Fund shares and your account number. Financial intermediaries who purchase shares of other classes of Funds by exchange on behalf of their customers under the situations described in items (b), (e), and (f) above are not entitled to receive any applicable sales load or CDSC resulting from the exchange.

Please call (800) 999-6809 to obtain complete information and to answer any questions you may have about exchanging your shares. For Class M shares, please contact your financial intermediary to obtain complete information and to answer any questions you may have about exchanging your shares.

Other Redemption Information

Telephone Redemptions and Exchanges

As discussed in the Fund's prospectus, the telephone redemption and exchange privileges are available for all shareholder accounts except that only the telephone exchange privilege is available for retirement accounts. Telephone redemptions and exchanges are not available for Class M shareholders. The privileges may be modified or terminated at any time. The privileges are subject to the conditions and provisions set forth below and in the prospectus.

- 1. Telephone redemption and/or exchange instructions received in good order before the pricing of the Fund on any day on which the NYSE is open for business (a "Business Day"), but not later than 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, will be processed at that day's closing net asset value. If you choose to receive the proceeds from your redemption via wire transfer, there is a \$30.00 charge.
- 2. Telephone redemptions and/or exchange instructions should be made by calling (800) 999-6809.
- 3. The Transfer Agent will not permit exchanges in violation of any of the terms and conditions set forth in the prospectus or herein.
- 4. Telephone redemption requests must meet the following conditions to be accepted by the Transfer Agent: (a) Proceeds of the redemption must be mailed to the current address on the application or sent to the address stated on payment instructions on file. This address or payment instructions cannot reflect any change within the previous 30 days. (b) Certain account information will need to be provided for verification purposes before the redemption will be executed. (c) There is no limit on the number of telephone redemptions (where proceeds are being mailed to the address of record or sent to the address stated on payment instructions on file) that can be processed within a 30-day period. (d) For an individual investor, the maximum amount which can be liquidated and sent to the address of record at any one time is \$50,000.

Matters Affecting Redemptions

Payments to shareholders for shares redeemed will be made within seven days after receipt by the Transfer Agent of the request in good order, except that the Trust may suspend the right of redemption or postpone the date of payment as to the Fund during any period when (a) trading on the NYSE is restricted as determined by the SEC or such exchange is closed for other than weekends and holidays; (b) an emergency exists as determined by the SEC making disposal of portfolio securities or valuation of net assets of the Fund not reasonably practicable; (c) for such other period as the SEC may permit for the protection of the Fund's shareholders; or (d) to the extent otherwise permitted by applicable laws and regulations. At various times, the Fund may be requested to redeem shares for which it has not yet received good payment. Accordingly, the Fund may delay the mailing of a redemption check until such time as the Fund has assured itself that good payment has been collected for the purchase of such shares, which may take up to 10 Business Days.

The Fund intends to pay in cash for all shares redeemed, but under abnormal conditions that make payment in cash unwise, the Fund may make payment wholly or partly in securities at their then current market value equal to the redemption price. In such case, an investor may incur brokerage costs in converting such securities to cash. In the event the Fund liquidates portfolio securities to meet redemptions, the Fund reserves the right to reduce the redemption price by an amount equivalent to the prorated cost of such liquidation not to exceed one percent of the net asset value of such shares.

In accordance with its 18f-1 election filed with the SEC, the Trust intends to redeem shares of the Fund solely in cash up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1.00% of the Fund's net assets during any 90-day period for any one shareholder. In consideration of the best interests of the remaining shareholders, the Trust reserves the right to pay any redemption proceeds exceeding this amount in whole or in part by a distribution in-kind of securities held by the Fund in lieu of cash. It is highly unlikely that shares would ever be redeemed in-kind. When shares are redeemed in-kind, the redeeming shareholders should expect to incur transaction costs upon the disposition of the securities received in the distribution. In such cases, the shareholder may incur brokerage costs in converting the portfolio securities to cash.

The Trust has adopted procedures under which it may make redemptions-in-kind to shareholders who are affiliated persons of the Fund (as defined in Section 2(a)(3) of the 1940 Act). Under these procedures, the Trust generally may satisfy a redemption request from an affiliated person in-kind, provided that: (1) the redemption-in-kind is effected at approximately the affiliated shareholder's proportionate share of the distributing Fund's current net assets, and thus does not result in the dilution of the interests of the remaining shareholders; (2) the distributed securities are valued in the same manner as they are valued for purposes of computing the distributing Fund's net asset value; (3) the redemption-in-kind is consistent with the Fund's prospectus and SAI; and (4) neither the affiliated shareholder nor any other party with the ability and the pecuniary incentive to influence the redemption-in-kind selects, or influences the selection of, the distributed securities.

Due to the relatively high cost of handling small investments, the Fund reserves the right, upon 60 days' written notice, to redeem, at net asset value, the shares of any shareholder whose account has a value of less than \$100 in the Fund. Before a Fund redeems such

shares and sends the proceeds to the shareholder, it will notify the shareholder that the value of the shares in the account is less than the minimum amount and will allow the shareholder 60 days to make an additional investment in an amount that will increase the value of the account to at least \$100 before the redemption is processed. This policy will not be implemented where the Trust has previously waived the minimum investment requirements or where the account value is a result of a decline in the net asset value per share.

The holding period for Class C shares of the Fund acquired through an exchange will be calculated from the date that the initial purchase of Class C shares was made. The applicable CDSC amount will be based on the CDSC that applied to the Fund initially purchased and the holding period will be calculated from the date of such initial purchase.

The value of shares on redemption or repurchase may be more or less than the investor's investment, depending upon the market value of the portfolio securities at the time of redemption or repurchase.

DETERMINATION OF SHARE PRICE

The net asset value ("NAV") and offering price of the Fund's shares will be determined once daily as of the close of trading on the NYSE (normally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) during each day on which the NYSE is open for trading. As of the date of this SAI, the NYSE is closed on the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. The offering price is the NAV per share plus any applicable sales charge. When you sell shares, you receive the NAV per share minus any applicable CDSC.

The NAV per share for the Fund for purposes of pricing sales and redemptions is calculated by dividing the value of all securities and other assets belonging to the Fund, less the liabilities charged to the Fund, by the number of shares of the Fund that have already been issued. The NAV of different classes of shares of the Fund will differ due to differing class expenses. The offering price is the NAV per share plus any applicable sales charge. When you sell shares, you receive the NAV per share minus any applicable CDSC. The price at which a purchase or redemption is effected is based on the next calculation of net asset value after the order is placed. Orders received by Financial Intermediaries prior to the close of trading on the NYSE will be confirmed at the offering price computed as of the close of trading on the NYSE (normally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time). It is the responsibility of the financial intermediary to insure that all orders are transmitted in a timely manner to the Fund. Orders received by financial intermediaries after the close of trading on the NYSE will be confirmed at the next computed offering price.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES AND PRIVILEGES

For investors purchasing shares under a tax-qualified individual retirement or pension plan or under a group plan through a person designated for the collection and remittance of monies to be invested in shares on a periodic basis, the Fund may, in lieu of furnishing confirmations following each purchase of Fund shares, send statements no less frequently than quarterly, pursuant to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("1934 Act"), and the rules thereunder. Such quarterly statements, which would be sent to the investor or to the person designated by the group for distribution to its members, will be sent after the end of each quarterly period and shall reflect all transactions in the investor's account during the preceding quarter. All other shareholders will receive a confirmation of each new transaction in their accounts.

Certificates representing shares of the Fund will not be issued to shareholders. The Transfer Agent will maintain for each shareholder an account in which the registration and transfer of shares are recorded, and any transfers will be reflected by bookkeeping entry, without physical delivery.

The Transfer Agent will require that a shareholder provide requests in writing, accompanied by a valid Medallion Signature Guarantee, when changing certain information in an account, such as wiring instructions.

Self-Employed and Corporate Retirement Plans

For self-employed individuals and corporate investors that wish to purchase shares, a Prototype Plan and Custody Agreement are available through the Trust. For further details, including the right to appoint a successor custodian, see the Prototype Plan and Custody Agreements as provided by the Trust. Employers who wish to use shares of the Trust under a custodianship with another bank or trust company must make individual arrangements with such an institution.

Individual Retirement Accounts

Investors with earned income are eligible to purchase shares of the Fund under an individual retirement account ("IRA") pursuant to Section 408(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. An individual who creates an IRA may contribute annually certain dollar amounts of earned income, and an additional amount if there is a non-working spouse. Simplified Employee Pension Plans ("SEP IRA"), which

employers may establish on behalf of their employees are also available. Full details on the IRA and SEP IRA are contained in IRS required disclosure statements, and the custodian will not open an IRA until seven days after the investor has received such statement from the Trust. An IRA funded by shares of the Fund may also be used by employers who have adopted a SEP IRA.

Purchases of shares by Section 403(b) retirement plans and other retirement plans are also available. It is advisable for an investor considering the funding of any retirement plan to consult with an attorney or to obtain advice from a competent retirement plan consultant.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

Shareholders have the privilege of reinvesting both income dividends and capital gain distributions, if any, in additional shares of the Fund at the then current net asset value, with no sales charge. Alternatively, a shareholder can elect at any time to receive dividends and/or capital gain distributions in cash.

In the absence of such an election, each purchase of shares of the Fund is made upon the condition and understanding that the Transfer Agent is automatically appointed the shareholder's agent to receive the investor's dividends and distributions upon all shares registered in the investor's name and to reinvest them in full and fractional shares of the Fund at the applicable net asset value in effect at the close of business on the reinvestment date. A shareholder may still at any time after a purchase of shares of the Fund request that dividends and/or capital gain distributions be paid to the shareholder in cash.

If you elect to receive cash dividends and/or capital gains distributions and a check is returned as undelivered by the United States Postal Service, the Fund reserves the right to invest the check in additional shares of the Fund at the then-current net asset value and to convert your account's election to automatic reinvestment of all distributions, until the Fund's Transfer Agent receives a corrected address in writing from the number of account owners authorized on your application to change the registration. If the Transfer Agent receives no written communication from the account owner(s) and there are no purchases, sales or exchanges in your account for a period of time mandated by state law, then that state may require the Transfer Agent to turn over to the applicable state government the value of the account as well as any dividends or distributions paid.

After a dividend or capital gains distribution is paid, the Fund's share price will drop by the amount of the dividend or distribution. If you have chosen to have your dividends or distributions paid to your account in additional shares, the total value of your account will not change after the dividend or distribution is paid. In such cases, while the value of each share will be lower, each reinvesting shareholder will own more shares. Reinvested shares will be purchased at the price in effect at the close of business on the day after the record date.

TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion relates solely to U.S. federal income tax law as applicable to U.S. persons (i.e., U.S. citizens or residents and U.S. domestic corporations, trusts or estates) and certain foreign persons (i.e., non-U.S. persons) subject to tax under such law. The discussion does not address special tax rules applicable to certain classes of investors, such as tax-exempt entities, partnerships, insurance companies, and financial institutions. Dividends, capital gain distributions, and ownership of or gains realized on the redemption (including an exchange) of Fund shares also may be subject to state and local taxes. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors as to the Federal, state or local tax consequences of ownership of shares of, and receipt of distributions from, a Fund in their particular circumstances.

The following discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal tax considerations generally affecting the Fund and its shareholders. This discussion is based upon present provisions of the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and judicial and administrative ruling authorities, all of which are subject to change, which change may be retroactive. This discussion does not provide a detailed explanation of all tax consequences, and shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the particular consequences to them of an investment in the Fund, as well as the tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, foreign country, or other taxing jurisdiction.

Qualification as a Regulated Investment Company

The Fund intends to qualify as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under the Code. To so qualify, the Fund must, among other things, in each taxable year: (a) derive at least 90% of its gross income from dividends, interest, payments with respect to securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock or securities, and gains from the sale or other disposition of foreign currencies, net income derived from an interest in a qualified publicly traded partnership or other income (including gains from options, futures contracts, and forward contracts) derived with respect to the Fund's business of investing in stocks, securities or currencies and (b) diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter, (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets (including borrowings for investment purposes, if any) is represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, securities of other regulated

investment companies, and other securities, with such other securities limited in respect of any one issuer to an amount not greater in value than 5% of the Fund's total assets (including borrowings for investment purposes, if any) and to not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets (including borrowings for investment purposes, if any) is invested in the securities (other than U.S. government securities or securities of other regulated investment companies) of any one issuer, of any two or more issuers that the Fund controls, and that are determined to be engaged in the same business or similar or related businesses or of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships.

As a regulated investment company, the Fund generally is not subject to U.S. federal income tax on income and gains it distributes to shareholders, if at least the sum of 90% of the Fund's investment company taxable income (which includes, among other items, dividends, interest, and net short-term capital gains in excess of net long-term capital losses) and 90% of the Fund's net tax-exempt interest income for the taxable year is distributed. Amounts not distributed on a timely basis in accordance with a calendar year distribution requirement also are subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax. To prevent application of the excise tax, the Fund intends to make distributions in accordance with the calendar year distribution requirement.

If, in any taxable year, the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC under the Code or fails to meet the distribution requirement, it generally would be taxed in the same manner as an ordinary corporation and distributions to its shareholders would not be deductible by the Fund in computing its taxable income. In addition, the Fund's distributions, to the extent derived from its current or accumulated earnings and profits, would constitute dividends (which may be eligible for the corporate-dividends received deduction) which are taxable to shareholders as ordinary income, or as qualifying dividends eligible for a reduced rate of tax as discussed below. If the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC in any year, it must pay out its earnings and profits accumulated in that year in order to qualify again as a RIC. Moreover, if the Fund failed to qualify as a RIC for a period greater than two taxable years, the Fund may be required to recognize any net built-in gains with respect to certain of its assets (the excess of the aggregate gains, including items of income, over aggregate losses that would have been realized if the Fund had been liquidated) in order to qualify as a RIC in a subsequent year.

Distributions

Dividends of investment company taxable income (including net short-term capital gains) are generally taxable to shareholders as ordinary income (subject to the discussion of qualifying dividends below), whether received in cash or reinvested in Fund shares. The Fund's distributions of investment company taxable income may be eligible for the corporate dividends-received deduction to the extent attributable to the applicable Fund's dividend income from U.S. corporations, and if other applicable requirements are met. However, the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations may reduce the benefit of the dividends-received deduction.

Distributions of net capital gains (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital losses) designated by the Fund as capital gain dividends are taxable to shareholders, whether received in cash or reinvested in Fund shares, as long-term capital gain, regardless of the length of time the Fund's shares have been held by a shareholder, and are not eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Any distributions that are not from the Fund's investment company taxable income or net capital gains may be characterized as a return of capital to shareholders or, in some cases, as capital gains. Shareholders will be notified annually as to the federal tax status of dividends and distributions they receive and any tax withheld thereon.

For more information on the declaration and payment of dividends, please see "Dividends and Taxes" in the Fund's prospectus.

Dividends, including capital gain dividends, declared in December with a record date in such month and paid during the following January will be treated as having been paid by the Fund and received by shareholders on December 31 of the calendar year in which declared, rather than the calendar year in which the dividends are actually received.

Distributions by a Fund reduce the net asset value of that Fund's shares. Should a distribution reduce the net asset value below a shareholder's cost basis, the distribution nevertheless may be taxable to the shareholder as ordinary income or capital gain as described above, even though, from an investment standpoint, it may constitute a partial return of capital. In particular, investors should be careful to consider the tax implication of buying shares just prior to a distribution by a Fund. The price of shares purchased at that time includes the amount of the forthcoming distribution, but the distribution will generally be taxable to the shareholder.

Current tax law generally provides for a maximum tax rate for individual taxpayers of 15% on long-term capital gains from sales and on certain qualifying dividends on corporate stock. The rate reductions do not apply to corporate taxpayers. The Fund will be able to separately designate distributions of any qualifying long-term capital gains or qualifying dividends earned by the Fund that would be eligible for the lower maximum rate. A shareholder would also have to satisfy a more than 60-day holding period with respect to any distributions of qualifying dividends in order to obtain the benefit of the lower rate. Distributions from the Fund's investments in bonds and other debt instruments will not generally qualify for the lower rates. Note that distributions of earnings from dividends paid by "qualified foreign corporations" can also qualify for the lower tax rates on qualifying dividends. Qualified foreign corporations are corporations incorporated in a U.S. possession, corporations whose stock is readily tradable on an established securities market in the U.S., and corporations eligible for the benefits of a comprehensive income tax treaty with the United States which satisfy certain other

requirements. Passive foreign investment companies are not treated as "qualified foreign corporations." The lower tax rates on long-term capital gains and qualifying dividends is scheduled to expire after 2012 in the absence of Congressional action.

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, an additional 3.8% Medicare tax will be imposed on certain net investment income (including ordinary dividends and capital gain distributions received from the Fund and net gains from redemptions or other taxable dispositions of Fund shares) of U.S. individuals, estates and trusts to the extent that such person's "modified adjusted gross income" (in the case of an individual) or "adjusted gross income" (in the case of an estate or trust) exceeds a threshold amount.

Sale or Other Disposition of Shares

Upon the redemption or exchange of shares, a shareholder will realize a taxable gain or loss depending upon the basis in the shares. Such gain or loss will be treated as capital gain or loss if the shares are capital assets in the shareholder's hands; a gain will generally be taxed as long-term capital gain if the shareholder's holding period is more than one year. A gain from disposition of shares held not more than one year will be treated as short-term capital gain. Any loss realized on a sale or exchange will be disallowed to the extent that the shares disposed of are replaced (including replacement through the reinvesting of dividends and capital gain distributions) within a period of 61 days, beginning 30 days before and ending 30 days after the disposition of the shares. In such a case, the basis of the shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. Any loss recognized on shares held for six months or less will be treated as long-term capital loss to the extent of any long-term capital gain distributions that were received with respect to the shares. Further, any loss recognized on shares held less than six months will be disallowed to the extent of any exempt interest dividends that were received with respect to such shares.

In some cases, shareholders will not be permitted to take sales charges into account for purposes of determining the amount of gain or loss realized on the disposition of their shares. This prohibition generally applies where (1) the shareholder incurs a sales charge in acquiring Fund shares, (2) the shares are disposed of before the 91st day after the date on which they were acquired, and (3) the shareholder subsequently acquires shares of the same or another Fund and the otherwise applicable sales charge is reduced or eliminated under a "reinvestment right" received upon the initial purchase of shares. In that case, the gain or loss recognized will be determined by excluding from the tax basis of the shares exchanged all or a portion of the sales charge incurred in acquiring those shares. This exclusion applies to the extent that the otherwise applicable sales charge with respect to the newly acquired shares is reduced as a result of having incurred a sales charge initially. Sales charges affected by this rule are treated as if they were incurred with respect to the shares acquired under the reinvestment right. This provision may be applied to successive acquisitions of shares.

Backup Withholding

The Fund generally will be required to withhold federal income tax, currently at a rate of 28% (currently scheduled to increase to 31% after 2012) ("backup withholding") from dividends paid, capital gain distributions and redemption proceeds to a shareholder if (1) the shareholder fails to furnish the Fund with the shareholder's correct taxpayer identification number or social security number and to make such certifications as the Fund may require, (2) the IRS notifies the shareholder or the Fund that the shareholder has failed to report properly certain interest and dividend income to the IRS and to respond to notices to that effect, or (3) when required to do so, the shareholder fails to certify that he is not subject to backup withholding. Any amounts withheld may be credited against the shareholder's Federal income tax liability.

Foreign Shareholders

Taxation of a shareholder who, as to the United States, is a nonresident alien individual, foreign trust or estate, foreign corporation, or foreign partnership ("foreign shareholder"), depends on whether the income from the Fund is "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by such shareholder.

If the income from the Fund is not effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business carried on by a foreign shareholder, ordinary income dividends will generally be subject to U.S. withholding tax at the rate of 30% (or, if applicable, a lower treaty rate) upon the gross amount of the dividend. The foreign shareholder would generally be exempt from U.S. federal income tax on gains realized on the sale of shares of the Fund, capital gain dividends, and amounts retained by the Fund that are designated as undistributed capital gains. Note that the 15% rate of tax applicable to certain dividends (discussed above) does not apply to dividends paid to foreign shareholders.

If the income from the Fund is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business carried on by a foreign shareholder, then ordinary income dividends, capital gain dividends, and any gains realized upon the sale of shares of the Fund will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the rates applicable to U.S. citizens or domestic corporations.

Foreign noncorporate shareholders may be subject to backup withholding on distributions that are otherwise exempt from withholding tax (or taxable at a reduced treaty rate) unless such shareholders furnish the Fund with proper certification of their foreign status.

Effective January 1, 2013, the Fund will be required to withhold U.S. tax (at a 30% rate) on payments of dividends and redemption proceeds made to certain non-U.S. entities that fail to comply with extensive new reporting and withholding requirements designed to inform the U.S. Department of the Treasury of U.S.-owned foreign investment accounts. Shareholders may be requested to provide additional information to the Fund to enable the Fund to determine whether withholding is required.

Foreign shareholders may also be subject to U.S. Federal estate tax on the value of their shares. Foreign shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in the Fund, including the applicability of foreign taxes.

Original Issue Discount

Certain debt securities acquired by the Fund may be treated as debt securities that were originally issued at a discount. Original issue discount can generally be defined as the difference between the price at which a security was issued and its stated redemption price at maturity. Although no cash income is actually received by the Fund, original issue discount that accrues on a debt security in a given year generally is treated for federal income tax purposes as interest and, therefore, such income would be subject to the distribution requirements of the Code.

Market Discount

Some debt securities may be purchased by the Fund at a discount which exceeds the original issue discount on such debt securities, if any. This additional discount represents market discount for federal income tax purposes. The gain realized on the disposition of any taxable debt security having market discount generally will be treated as ordinary income to the extent it does not exceed the accrued market discount on such debt security. If the amount of market discount is more than a de minimis amount, a portion of such market discount must be included as ordinary income (not capital gain) by the Fund in each taxable year in which the Fund owns an interest in such debt security and receives a principal payment on it. In particular, the Fund will be required to allocate that principal payment first to the portion of the market discount on the debt security that has accrued but has not previously been included in income. In general, the amount of market discount that must be included for each period is equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of market discount accruing during such period (plus any accrued market discount for prior periods not previously taken into account) or (ii) the amount of the principal payment with respect to such period. Generally, market discount accrues on a daily basis for each day the debt security is held by the Fund at a constant rate over the time remaining to the debt security's maturity or, at the election of the Fund, at a constant yield to maturity which takes into account the semi-annual compounding of interest.

Options, Futures, and Foreign Currency Forward Contracts; Straddle Rules

The Fund's transactions in foreign currencies, forward contracts, options, and futures contracts (including options and futures contracts on foreign currencies) will be subject to special provisions of the Code that, among other things, may affect the character of gains and losses realized by the Fund (that is, may affect whether gains or losses are ordinary or capital), accelerate recognition of income to the Fund, defer Fund losses, and affect the determination of whether capital gains and losses are treated as long-term or short-term capital gains or losses. These rules could therefore, in turn, affect the character, amount, and timing of distributions to shareholders. These provisions also may require the Fund to mark-to-market certain positions in its portfolio (that is, treat them as if they were sold), which may cause the Fund to recognize income without receiving cash to use to make distributions in amounts necessary to avoid income and excise taxes. The Fund will monitor its transactions and may make such tax elections as management deems appropriate with respect to foreign currency, options, futures contracts, forward contracts or hedged investments. The Fund's status as a regulated investment company may limit its ability to engage in transactions involving foreign currency, futures, options, and forward contracts.

Certain transactions undertaken by the Fund may result in "straddles" for federal income tax purposes. The straddle rules may affect the character of gains (or losses) realized by the Fund, and losses realized by the Fund on positions that are part of a straddle may be deferred under the straddle rules, rather than being taken into account in calculating the taxable income for the taxable year in which the losses are realized. In addition, certain carrying charges (including interest expense) associated with positions in a straddle may be required to be capitalized rather than deducted currently. Certain elections that the Fund may make with respect to its straddle positions may also affect the amount, character, and timing of the recognition of gains or losses from the affected positions.

Dividend Rolls

The Fund may perform "dividend rolls." A dividend roll is an arrangement in which the Fund purchases stock in a U.S. corporation that is about to pay a dividend. The Fund then collects the dividend. If applicable requirements are met, the dividend may qualify for the corporate "dividends-received deduction." If so, the Fund's distributions of investment company taxable income may in turn be eligible for the corporate dividends-received deduction (pursuant to which corporate shareholders of the Fund may exclude from

income up to 70% of the portion of such qualifying distributions) to the extent attributable to its dividend income from U.S. corporations (including its income from dividend roll transactions if the applicable requirements are met). The Fund then sells the stock after the dividend is paid. This usually results in a short term capital loss. Dividend roll transactions are subject to less favorable tax treatment if the sale of the stock is prearranged or where there is otherwise no risk of loss during the holding period. Under those circumstances, the dividend would not qualify for the dividends-received deduction.

Constructive Sales

Under certain circumstances, the Fund may recognize a gain from a constructive sale of an "appreciated financial position" it holds if it enters into a short sale, forward contract or other transaction that substantially reduces the risk of loss with respect to the appreciated position. In that event, the Fund would be treated as if it had sold and immediately repurchased the property and would be taxed on any gain (but not loss) from the constructive sale. The character of gain from a constructive sale would depend upon the Fund's holding period in the property. Loss would be recognized when the property was subsequently disposed of, and its character would depend on the Fund's holding period and the application of various loss deferral provisions of the Code. Constructive sale treatment does not apply to transactions that are closed before the end of the 30th day after the close of the taxable year and where the Fund holds the appreciated financial position throughout the 60-day period beginning on the date the transaction is closed, if certain other conditions are met.

Foreign Taxation

Income received by the Fund from sources within foreign countries may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed by such countries. Tax conventions between certain countries and the U.S. may reduce or eliminate such taxes.

Currency Fluctuation – Section 988 Gains and Losses

Gains or losses attributable to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates that occur between the time the Fund accrues income or other receivables or accrues expenses or other liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and the time the Fund actually collects such receivables or pay such liabilities generally are treated as ordinary income or loss. Similarly, on disposition of certain investments (including debt securities denominated in a foreign currency and certain futures contracts, forward contracts, and options), gains or losses attributable to fluctuations in the value of foreign currency between the date of acquisition of the security or other instrument and the date of disposition also are treated as ordinary income or loss. These gains or losses, referred to under the Code as "section 988" gains or losses, may increase or decrease the amount of the Fund's investment company taxable income available to be distributed to its shareholders as ordinary income.

Passive Foreign Investment Companies

The Fund may invest in the stock of foreign companies that may be classified under the Code as passive foreign investment companies ("PFICs"). In general, a foreign corporation is classified as a PFIC if at least one-half of its assets constitute passive assets (such as stocks or securities) or if 75% or more of its gross income is passive income (such as, but not limited to, interest, dividends, and gain from the sale of securities). If the Fund receives an "excess distribution" with respect to PFIC stock, the Fund will generally be subject to tax on the distribution as if it were realized ratably over the period during which the Fund held the PFIC stock. The Fund will be subject to tax on the portion of an excess distribution that is allocated to prior Fund taxable years, and an interest factor will be added to the tax, as if it were payable in such prior taxable years. Certain distributions from a PFIC and gain from the sale of PFIC shares are treated as excess distributions. Excess distributions are taxable as ordinary income.

The Fund may be eligible to elect alternative tax treatment with respect to PFIC stock. Under an election that is available in some circumstances, the Fund generally would be required to include in its gross income its share of the earnings of a PFIC on a current basis, regardless of whether distributions were received from the PFIC in a given year. If this election were made, the rules relating to the taxation of excess distributions would not apply. In addition, another election would involve marking-to-market the Fund's PFIC shares at the end of each taxable year, with the result that unrealized gains would be treated as though they were realized and reported as ordinary income. Any mark-to-market losses and any loss from an actual disposition of PFIC shares would be deductible as ordinary losses to the extent of any net mark-to-market gains included in income in prior years. Note that distributions from a PFIC are not eligible for the reduced rate of tax on "qualifying dividends."

Other Investment Companies

It is possible that by investing in other investment companies, the Fund may not be able to meet the calendar year distribution requirement and may be subject to federal income and excise tax. The diversification and distribution requirements applicable to the Fund may limit the extent to which the Fund will be able to invest in other investment companies.

Short Sales

Short sales are subject to special tax rules which will impact the character of gains and losses realized and affect the timing of income recognition. Short sales entered into by the Fund by increase the amount of ordinary income dividends received by shareholders and may impact the amount of qualified dividend income and income eligible for the dividends received deduction that it is able to pass through to shareholders.

Other Tax Matters

Under the current tax law, capital and currency losses realized after October 31 may be deferred and treated as occurring on the first day of the following fiscal year.

Exchange control regulations that may restrict repatriation of investment income, capital, or the proceeds of securities sales by foreign investors may limit a Fund's ability to make sufficient distributions to satisfy the 90% and calendar year distribution requirements described above.

Different tax treatment, including penalties on certain excess contributions and deferrals, certain pre-retirement and post-retirement distributions, and certain prohibited transactions, is accorded to accounts maintained as qualified retirement plans. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors for more information.

The foregoing discussion relates solely to U.S. federal income tax law as applicable to U.S. persons (i.e., U.S. citizens or residents and U.S. domestic corporations, partnerships, trusts, or estates) subject to tax under such law. The discussion does not address special tax rules applicable to certain classes of investors, such as tax-exempt entities, insurance companies, and financial institutions. Dividends, capital gain distributions, and ownership of or gains realized on the redemption (including an exchange) of Fund shares also may be subject to state and local taxes. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors as to the Federal, state or local tax consequences of ownership of shares of, and receipt of distributions from, the Fund in their particular circumstances.

Liquidation of Fund

The Board of Trustees of the Trust may determine to close and liquidate the Fund at any time, which may have adverse tax consequences to shareholders. In the event of the liquidation of the Fund, shareholders will receive a liquidating distribution in cash or in-kind equal to their proportionate interest in the Fund. A liquidating distribution may be a taxable event to shareholders, resulting in a gain or loss for tax purposes, depending upon a shareholders basis in his or her shares of the Fund.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Description of the Trust and Its Shares

The Trust consists of thirty-five portfolios described in separate prospectuses and SAIs. Each share represents an equal proportionate interest in a Forward Fund with other shares of that Fund, and is entitled to such dividends and distributions out of the income earned on the assets belonging to that Fund as are declared at the discretion of the Trustees. Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each share owned.

An annual or special meeting of shareholders to conduct necessary business is not required by the Declaration of Trust, the 1940 Act or other authority except, under certain circumstances, to elect Trustees, amend the Certificate of Trust, approve an investment advisory agreement and satisfy certain other requirements. To the extent that such a meeting is not required, the Trust may elect not to have an annual or special meeting.

The Trust will call a special meeting of shareholders for purposes of considering the removal of one or more Trustees upon written request from shareholders holding not less than 10% of the outstanding votes of the Trust. At such a meeting, a quorum of shareholders (constituting a majority of votes attributable to all outstanding shares of the Trust), by majority vote, has the power to remove one or more Trustees.

Control Persons and Principal Holders of Securities

As of the date of this SAI, no person owned of record or beneficially 25% or greater of the Fund's outstanding voting securities or 5% or greater of any class of the Fund's outstanding equity securities.

As of the date of this SAI, the Officers and Trustees owned less than 1% of any class of any of the outstanding shares of the Fund.

Other Information

The Trust is registered with the SEC as an open-end management investment company. Such registration does not involve supervision of the management or policies of the Trust by any governmental agency. The Fund's prospectus and this SAI omit certain of the information contained in the Registration Statement filed with the SEC and copies of this information may be obtained from the SEC upon payment of the prescribed fee or examined at the SEC in Washington, D.C. without charge.

Investors in the Fund will be kept informed of their investments in the Fund through annual and semi-annual reports showing portfolio composition, statistical data, and any other significant data, including financial statements audited by the independent registered public accountants.

Custodian

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BBH") is the Trust's custodian. Its principal business address is 40 Water Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02109. BBH is responsible for the custody of the Fund's assets and, as foreign custody manager, will oversee the custody of any Fund assets held outside the United States. BBH takes no part in the decisions relating to the purchase or sale of the Trust's portfolio securities.

Legal Counsel

Legal matters for the Trust are handled by Dechert LLP, 1775 I Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20006.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP acts as the Trust's independent registered public accounting firm.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

You may obtain a prospectus, annual report or semi-annual report at no charge by contacting the Trust at Forward Funds, P.O. Box 1345, Denver, CO 80201, or by calling (800) 999-6809.